II.

1.

IV.

AGENDA
PUBLIC HEARING
RICHLANDS TOWN COUNCIL
At the Richlands Town Hall
October 12, 2021
5:30 P.M.

Call Hearing to Order

Solicit Public Comment - To receive input on the American Rescue
Plan Act (ARPA) Funding of $5,430,362.00 which is over 1% of
the total current budget.

Receive Public Comment

Close Public Comment Period

Adjourn Public Hearing






II.

II1.

IV.

VL

VII.

VIIIL

IX.

AGENDA
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING
At Richlands Town Hall
October 12, 2021
6:00 P.M.

Call the Meeting to Order
Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance

Additions/Deletions to Agenda
(This includes the removal/transfer of any Consent Agenda items to the Regular Agenda that need full discussion.)

a. Approval of Agenda

Approval of Minutes .

September 14 — Public Hearing, September 14 — Regular Council Meeting, September
27 — Workshop

Consent Agenda

a. Authorization to Pay Bills (September)

b. Authorize Line of Credit Drawdown Number #12 from National Bank for
Wastewater Treatment Plant Rehabilitation Project ($727.96) and Water
Treatment Plant Upgrades and Improvements ($43,745.67) cost for September
billing for a total of $44,473.63.

Scheduled Public Comments (Five Minute Maximum)
Kenneth Boyd- Demand Meter at 208 Burnette Street
Laura Mollo- Miscellaneous Concerns

Unscheduled Public Comments (Three Minute Maximum)

Agenda Items

a. Battery Backup Proposal Discussion

b. Electric PCA Discussion
Zoning Board of Appeals Appointment
Planning Commission Appointment
Greenspace Update
Public Comments Rules and Procedure Update
Charter Workshop Discussion
Drive-Thru T&L Contract Approval
Drive-thru Update
Junior Firefighters Program Ordinance

T PR e Ao



XI.

XII.

XIII.

XIV.

XV.

XVIL.

k. ARPA Funding Plan Discussion

Town Manager Report:
a. Introduction of Finance Officer
b. Hill Top Update
¢. Miscellaneous

Attorney Comments:
a. Foreclosure Update

Council Member Reports (Non-voting Items):
Logan Plaster

Mary Ann Strong

Mike Street

Jeff Hurst

Richard Brown

Doug Ratliff

o o o

Mayor’s Comments:
Executive/Closed Session Pursuant to VA Code Section:
a. 2.2-3711(A) (29) — Contract Negotiations (DMYV, Property Acquisition, Jonah
Project)

Return to Open Session, Certification, Report on Action

Adjourn/ Recess Meeting

Next regular meeting date is November 9, 2021, at 6:00 pm



The Richlands Town Council held a “Public Hearing” in the Richlands Council Chambers on September
14, 2021, at 5:30 pm, with the following present:

Mayor: Rodney D. Cury

Town Manager: John O’Daniel

Town Clerk: Connie Allen

Council Members: Mary Ann Strong, Jeff Hurst, Mike Street, Doug Ratliff

Richard Brown
Council Member Absent: Logan Plaster
Town Attorney : Bob Altizer

Mayor Cury opened the meeting.

Mayor Cury — Solicit Public Comments — To provide the citizens of the Town of Richlands an opportunity
to be heard with respect to a proposal for the Town of Richlands to amend Sections 3.2, 3.5 and 3.8 of
Article 11l of the Town Charter regarding Nominations and Elections (Term Limits), the Office of Mayor
and Vice-Mayor, the manner for adopting Ordinances, and residency requirements for Town Manager.

Mayor Cury - Receive Public Comments — Laura Mollo and Sandra Culler

Laura - 262 Linwood Drive — The Charter changes are good in theory, but the execution is concerning.
Changing our founding documents isn’t something that should be taken lightly and decided in one (1) or
two (2) meetings. First, this part is purely my personal opinion. While | can see the want to remove the
necessity of the Town Manager to reside in Town limits, | also feel more strongly that the Town Manager
should reside in Town limits. If the Town Manager doesn’t believe in Richlands enough to live here, why
would we trust that person to run our entire Town? Term limits are a great idea, | fully support term
limits. However, the version of term limits in the proposal is going to cause confusion for future
Councils who are reading this without your explanation of what you mean by taking a break, coming
back, this counts, that doesn’t. | suggest simplifying it. Set term limits and explain it very plainly.
Remove the break and just set the term limits at (2) or (3) terms, whatever is decided upon. Please
reconsider the addition regarding the appointed time not counting. You’re giving yourselves too much
power. If someone is elected and then steps down, you can appoint whomever you choose to sit in that
seat and skirt the term limit. It should be uniform for everyone. The addition of the Mayor as a
Councilmember is contradicting to itself in the Council Section of the Charter, if the Mayor is a member
of Council they are entitled to have a vote. You can’t say the Mayor is a member then restrict his or her
ability to vote. This will once again create confusion in contradicting our Charter, where the duties of
Council are defined. If he is a member, those become the Mayor’s duties. In regard to Vice-Mayor
voting, you are completely removing any check and balance system that we have in this Council by
allowing the acting Vice-Mayor to vote. You're also setting us up for a huge failure if the Vice-Mayor is
acting Mayor and creates a tie. You're allowing a Vice-Mayor to vote twice, once as a Councilmember
and again as Mayor. The section regarding the two (2) readings or ordinances, yet again, you’re
removing a check and balance system by not requiring ordinances being read at two (2) regular



meetings. You’re allowing ordinances to be passed quickly and without regard to citizen involvement.
This goes straight into the allowing of any passage as an emergency ordinance. It seems like you are
forgetting that you are not the authority of the citizens, you are our voice. You work for us; you don’t
dictate us. You are in those seats to advocate for us, not to make the rules for us. By passing these
changes you are giving yourselves too much power and removing checks and balances, and taking away
the opportunity for citizen involvement, you are trying to give yourselves absolute power. British
historian Lord Acton once said, “Power corrupts, and absolute power corrupts absolutely”.

Mayor Cury - Sandra Culler

Sandra Culler — 1301 McDowell Street — Regarding the proposed changes to the Charter, | really do
agree with term limits, and | think there should be term limits. | have no problem with the break and if
someone wants to rerun, | have no problem with that. The manor for adopting ordinances | believe
there is one statement in their talks about emergencies that the Council would have to have two (2)
readings in order for that ordinance to pass except in an emergency. | have tried my best to figure out
when there would be an emergency that the whole Council would be called in to vote. | would suggest
that we use the term “urgent”. | can’t think of an emergency, if it is an emergency the Town Manager is
going to take action and take care of whatever the problem is. | was thinking of maybe a possible spill,
a hazardous spill into the river or something that would endanger the lives of citizens. | would suggest
instead of using the term emergency use “urgent” some kind of descriptive definition. | have a problem
with Vice-Mayor if he/she has to step up to take the place of the Mayor temporarily; they should
continue to have their vote. As far as the residency requirements for the Town Manager he should live
in Town just like all the other Council members at least within five (5) miles radius of the boundary.

Mayor Cury - Since there is no one else to speak at the Public Hearing | will ask for a motion to close the
Public Comment period.

Mike - 1 will make the motion.

Doug — Can a Councilmember speak?

Mayor Cury — This part is hearing for Members of Council, during Council you will have that opportunity.
Jeff - | will second the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no, Mike-Yes, Doug-Yes, Mary Ann-Yes, Richard — Yes, Jeff — Yes

Motion carries — 5/0.

Mayor Cury - Adjourned Public Hearing - Regular Council Meeting at 6:00pm



The Richlands Town Council held a regular monthly meeting in the Richlands Council Chambers on
September 14, 2021 at 6:00 pm with the following present:

Mayor: Rod D. Cury

Town Manager: John O'Daniel

Town Clerk: Connie Allen

Council Members: Mary Ann Strong, Doug Ratliff, Jeff Hurst

Mike Street, Richard Brown

Council Members Absent: Logan Plaster

Town Attorney: Bob Altizer
Mayor Cury opened the meeting.
Mayor Cury gave the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.
Mayor Cury — Do we have any additions/deletions/corrections to the agenda?
Mayor Cury - Does any in audience want to speak on “Unscheduled Public Comments”? Add Paul Cook
Connie - Please take off Carol Gilbert from “Scheduled Public Comments”
Mayor Cury - Remove Carol Gilbert and SinDusty Kyger-Melton from “Scheduled Public Comments”.
Mayor Cury - Add 2.2-3711 (A) (7) Potential Litigation.
Mayor Cury - Do | hear a motion to approve the agenda?
Mary Ann - | make a motion to approve the agenda as amended, Richard seconded the motion.
Mavyor Cury - | will ask for a general vote, all in favor say “I”.
Council - All said “I”

Mayor Cury - The motion carries unanimously.

Mayor Cury - Approval of the Minutes — August 10"~ Public Hearing and August 10™" Regular Council
Meeting.

Jeff- | make a motion to approve the minutes, Mike seconded the motion.



Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. Allthose that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann
—Yes Motion carries —5/0.

Mayor Cury - We are going to go into “Closed Session” for 2.2-3711 (A) (29) Contract Negotiations (Town
Attorney). Do | have a motion to go into “Closed Session”?

Richard - | make the motion to go into “Closed Session”, Mary Ann seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann
—Yes Motion carries —5/0.

Mayor Cury - We are going to reconvene.

Richard - We need a motion to come back into regular session?

Mayor Cury - | need to change that we need a motion to come back into regular session and to certify
that each member of Council, Mayor and anyone included in the “Closed Session” discussed nothing
other than 2.2-3711 (A) (29) Contract Negotiations regarding the Town Attorney.

Mike - | will make the motion, Mary Ann seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann
—Yes Motion carries —5/0.

Mayor Cury — Appointment of Town Attorney- Read the Resolution R-2021-08-01

Jeff - | make the motion to adopt R-2021-08-01, Mike seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike-Yes, Mary Ann -
Abstained Motion carries — 4/1 (Mary Ann abstained).

Mayor Cury - Welcome Mr. Altizer and your firm.

Bob Altizer - Thank you for having trust in our law firm, we appreciate it.

Mayor Cury —On a personal note we are hoping you are enjoying good health.



Mayor Cury - Before we have the public comments, the Mayor would like to read Section 4 of an
embedded resolution that has been in place for some time. | would ask that anyone speaking to Council
would it be scheduled or unscheduled, please address Council at large and please refrain from turning to
anyone in the audience and addressing them directly or even implying. It is a courtesy and a respect
issue. Section 4: Comments by citizens on agenda or non-agenda items are limited to statements:
speakers may not engage the Town Council members or Town employees in a question-and-answer
exchange. The Town Council encourages civility in public discourse and requests that speakers refrain
from language which would incite an immediate breach of the peace; and refrain from undue
repetition, extended discussion of irrelevancies, use of obscenities, and personal attacks. Any person
who violates these rules may be declared out of order by the Mayor. A person who persists in violating
these rules may be removed from the meeting.

Mayor Cury — “Scheduled Public Comments” Laura Mollo

Laura — 262 Linwood Drive — | once again ask about the ARPA money. Why will you not tell us how much
money Richlands is receiving and what is being done with this money. | think after you release the
dollar amount to the public, that you should also hold a public hearing to take citizen suggestions on
what is being done with such a large amount of money, | believe close to five million dollars, if 'm not
mistaken. Citizens have great ideas for that money and it does belong to the citizens of this Town. Also,
the Town Council needs to make citizen participation easier. It's hard for people to come to the
meetings; it’s hard for them to hear it on YouTube. You have turned comments off on YouTube. |
appreciate the work by Mr. O’Daniel to put the meetings back on the Access Channel but can we get an
update on when that will happen. Citizen input shouldn’t just be tolerated, it should be encouraged and
welcomed. The Council can do that by allowing phone participation. You can mute participants until it's
their turn to speak. This allows for safe participation during the pandemic and allows for people who
aren’t able to physically attend to still hear the meetings better on the phone and participate. Speaking
of safe participation, | would ask you reconsider the passage of electronic meeting participation. With
the recent state of emergency declared in the County, people are going to be required to stay home. If
someone is, God forbid, sick, or out of town, or whatever the case may be, they should still be allowed
participate. By not allowing that, you're taking away Citizen’s representation, not just Council
participation. The law states this may only take place twice in a year so a Councilmember can’t take
advantage of the situation. When four (4} of you voted to give yourselves insurance paid for by myself
and my fellow tax payers, it was said by a few of you that you were going to pass it because you and |
quote, “cannot tell your fellow Councilmembers what they should do” but would pass it because it’s
available. Electronic participation is covered by VA Code 2.2-3708.2. So why are you okay with letting
your fellow Councilmembers take advantage of insurance and not allowing electronic participation
during a pandemic? That sounds skewed and personal. | also want to ask about the Electrical
Committee. This was brought up in February of 2020 where there was a consensus taken and agreed
upon by a majority of Council to appoint new members, including citizens, to the Electrical Committee.
The Mayor at that time asked for a month to gather citizen names. Councilman Ratliff brought it up
again at the following month’s meeting and was pushed aside and it was never spoken of again. | think



it’s important to follow through on things you say you'll do. So can you please advertise open
appointments for the Electrical Committee and let’s have them start meeting again.

Mayor Cury ~ “Scheduled Public Comments” Blake Ray

Blake — 426 Buchanan Street — | was going to talk about something completely different tonight and it is
irrelevant to what | am going to talk about, | had a quote come across my desk this morning while | was
working. The quote was “You are always one decision away from a totally different life”, | come to
speak to you on what | really wanted to talk about, each of you have an obligation to hold the best
interest of the Town and the citizens to the highest degree. You are charged with making decisions that
could benefit the community and also harm the community. | find it very difficult for you to make those
decisions with eloquence if two (2) members of Council do not live here as a primary residence. Code
Section of Virginia states you have to live in Town 6 months and one (1) day out of the year. Allegedly
Councilman Ratliff and Councilman Plaster do not live in Town six months and one (1) day out of the
year. My request is to come to you as a body as a governing body to charge the Town Attorney who is
hired to represent the interest of the Town and the citizens of the Town to conduct a special
investigation to find out if they truly do live in the Town of Richlands Virginia six months and one day out
of the year. With that, that is my statement.

Mayor Cury — “Unscheduled Public Comments” — Paul Cook

Paul “Slick” Cook — 601 Suffolk Avenue — | have one (1) question, you mentioned the Electrical
Department, years back the Electrical Department combined with several other municipalities, | believe
it was Virginia Tech, City of Danville; we purchased at wholesale, sold it and made our profit. | don’t
know if you still have any type of connection with those people to get a lower rate. The Electrical
Department | believe is our largest income and if you don’t sell at a profit you are going to be hurting. |
agree a person should live in the Town of Richlands and if you do make a decision on Town Manager put
a time limit on it and stick to it. A few years back we had a couple of police officers who lived out of
Town because the housing was not available, it is available now. | think you should grandfather the
employees now, and have new employees live in the Town of Richlands. If you live in town you don’t
shop at Food City, | have seen one (1) or two (2) of the Councilmembers shop there. | won't call names
but | will hope not like years back we had controversy with one (1) lady who complained about
everything we did. | had the opening prayer and she commented in the paper that | had but it didn’t get
thru the ceiling, it may not have but the Lord helped me. It was tragic, she quit coming after her
husband killed himself, hope she didn’t drive him crazy like she was about to drive us crazy. The Town
has a had a couple new businesses, Fitness Place, Coal Town Taps a wonderful restaurant but we need
to try to get some industry that creates jobs that is not retail. You can bring all the retail people but you
just cut it out from somewhere else. Get the budgets straightened out and please start harmonizing
together and get some business in here that produces something.

Mayor Cury - Sorry we have a limited time and you spoke very well. Thank you and we appreciate your
input.



Mayor Cury — Introduction of New Economic Development Director — Ashley Harris

John ~ About a month ago we hired Ashley as the Economic Development Director. As we talked to kind
of switch what Connie’s role was on community development and focus more on economic
development. She is working on the grants that we are trying to wrap up for the library, green space
and looking at the revitalization downtown. | wanted to introduce her so you could have a face with the
name.

Ashley — 1 am Ashley Harris and | am originally from Bluefield West Virginia and | moved from Abingdon,
VA to Richlands around a year ago. | was working in Bristol TN as an Assistant Property Manager. |am
excited about moving forward with the Revitalization and helping to make a difference in our Town.
Currently | am working on writing a grant for the Greenway. The grant amount is $50,000 and would
help to complete the few additions as we had to cut from the previous plan due to increase in price of
materials. | am looking forward to working with the downtown businesses and each of you.

Mayor Cury - Very nice to have you thank you very much, Town Council, the Mayor and those not
present we want to say welcome and wish you nothing but success, your success is our success.

Mayor Cury — Authorization to Pay Bills and Authorize Line of Credit, drawdown number #12 from
National Bank for Wastewater Treatment Plant Rehabilitation Project, $2,673.02 and Water Treatment
Plant Upgrades and Improvements, $19,388.04, cost for August billing for a total of $22,061.06. Please
look at your check registers and if you have questions the Town Manager can address.

Mike - | want to make a statement, Check 10511 Neko Party Rentals, LLC, which was made by donations
not from the Town. It was for “Back to School Bash”.

Mary Ann — Check 10514, Gillespie, Hart, Altizer & Whitesell, P.C. - $6,957.40 higher than our normal
attorney fee, could Mr. Altizer explain why that is above normal?

Bob —The billing included the defense cost for defending the Town of Richlands for the law suit against
the Town for the adoption of the ordinances. We spent time defending that law suit and responding to
the preliminary injunction request, declaratory judgement request that was served on us that morning
for a hearing that afternoon. Myself and two (2} of my law partners had to get ourselves prepared on
behalf of the Town at the hearing and subsequently getting a good ruling for the Town, denying the
complainants request for relief we had to prepare an order, hearing by the court. A good portion of
that fee, $6957was billed to the Town and $3145 was defending the lawsuit. And also note the
insurance company for the Town has indicated and will be reimbursing that amount because it was
covered under a policy that is issued to the Town.

Mary Ann — It was a preliminary ruling.



Bob - There was a request for declaratory judgement and preliminary injunction and that was denied,
the suit is still pending and has been inactive the last few weeks. The complainants have not given us
any indication they want to move forward, | don’t know what their intent is. We can discuss in closed
session, | would be glad to give you all the details.

Mary Ann — Obviously there are more litigations.
Bob - Yes

Richard — Even though the insurance is paying the $3145, is it a claim against their company like it used
to be with VML or the end of the year we are going to be punished because we have filed this claim.

John - Potentially

Mayor Cury — Potentially, just wanted to make sure | heard correctly.

Richard — Used to be if you filed claims for wrecks and things like that end of year, pool based on the
money given back, they took that portion of the claim away from you. We are basically paying we are
not going to get $3145 back, we are just paying upfront.

Doug - | think it has to be a certain amount; | deal with it a lot. It is pooled but it is like health insurance
if you have an employee who has an astronomical hospital bill, | don’t think it will affect us but you can

let us know at the end of the year.

Mike - Check 10516 Marcus B. Buskill, DDS and Check 10520 Swank Motion Pictures those were both
donations for the “Back to School Bash”.

Mayor Cury — | need a motion to pay the bills.

Richard - I make a motion to authorize the Town Manager to pay the bills, Jeff seconded the motion.
Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. Allthose that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann
~Yes Motion carries —5/0.

Mayor Cury - Authorize Line of Credit, drawdown number #12 from National Bank for Wastewater
Treatment Plant Rehabilitation Project, $2,673.02 and Water Treatment Plant Upgrades and
Improvements, $19,388.04, cost for August billing for a total of $22,061.06.

Mavyor Cury - | need a motion to authorize the Town Manger to pay these bills.

Mary Ann - | make the motion, Mike seconded the motion.

6



Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann
—Yes Motion carries — 5/0.

Mayor Cury - Ordinances 0-2021-08-01 Rate Schedule, 0-2021-08-02, 0-2021-08-03, 0-2021-08-04

Richard - It calls for the second reading of the ordinances but we also have in the ordinances that they
are to be voted on tonight are we going to do that on each one of them.

Mayor Cury - We will read each ordinance and vote on them independently. | will ask the Town Attorney
and Town Manager what is the most professional way to do this, vote on each ordinance after it is read

or vote on them as a package.

John - I would prefer each, you do have an option to dispense with the second reading. If Council
decides not to have a second reading, Council can vote on them.

Mayor Cury — | will ask the Town Attorney to render his thinking as well.

Bob - These are new ordinances, you can vote to dispense with the second reading or have a second
reading, legally either way you would be fine. As far as transparency to the citizens | would read them.

Mayor Cury - If | am hearing Mr. Altizer correctly we can dispense with the second reading either way
we are fine, as far as transparency to the citizens we need to read them.

Bob - That would be my suggestion.

Mayor Cury - Is Council on board with the Mayor and the suggestion of Mr. Altizer? It is about doing the
right thing.

Richard - The only thing | would have, we are reading these and voting on as an emergency measure, so
we need to read them and then vote on each one of them.

Mayor Cury - That is what | am thinking too.

Mayor Cury - Ordinance 0-2021-08-01 — Read pages 1-4
Mike — Read pages 5-9

Richard — Read pages 10-12

Mary Ann — Read pages 13-16



Jeff — Read pages 17-19

Doug — Read page 20

Mayor Cury - | want the people watching and listening and present to know there should be no doubt
that this Council can read, next month is the constitution. Thank you. Before | call for a vote on this | do
have a question, | will refer to the manager and the attorney. Under item 12, we had the reading of the
ordinance 0-2021-08-01, to make sure it is in the right order, if you look down to item (d) Consideration
for Cancellation of Previous Ordinances are we talking about these same ordinances?

John - That was prior to these four (4). When we looked at these at prior meetings we realized the
numbers were not right or the timeline didn’t fall into place, we wanted to go back and make a final and
make sure we had everything in place.

Mayor Cury - | just wanted to know the proper procedure. Would it be in our best interest for the Town
of Richlands to cancel these ordinances before we move forward on voting on these four (4)
ordinances? Can we have ordinances in place at the same time, just asking?

Bob - Just as long as you cancel it is OK.

Mayor Cury - So it doesn’t matter, | just wanted to make sure we were doing that correctly.

Bob - Dispense with the second reading and adopted as an emergency measure to take effect
September 27, 2021.

Mayor Cury - Thank you for pointing out. Do | hear a motion to adopt Ordinance 0-2021-08-017
Richard - Are we going to have discussion after the motion?

Mayor Cury —Yes

Richard - I make the motion to adopt 0-2021-08-01, Mike seconded the motion.

Bob - You are also making motion to take effect as an emergency measure and take effect on bills
rendered after September 27, 2021.

Richard - That is correct.
Bob - Motion to adopt and as an emergency measure to take effect on September 27, 2021.

Mayor Cury - Can you please restate.



Richard — 1 will rescind my motion, Mike rescinded his motion.

Richard — I make a motion that the 0-2021-08-01 be adopted as read and as an emergency measure and
take effect on bills rendered after September 27, 2021, Mike seconded the motion.

Doug - Utility rates can’t be passed on an emergency basis based on the Charter.
Mayor Cury - | will defer to the attorney on that.

Bob — (Could not hear)

Doug - It is in the Charter, says it can’t be passed based on emergency measure.

Mayor Cury - | have a suggestion if it is OK to take a 10 minute recess to give the attorney time to find
that.

John - It would not make a difference if it was pushed out for another month.

Richard- My question didn’t have anything to do with that portion of it. Mr. Altizer on page 19 under
Electric Services — Unauthorized Electric/Water Meter Options $50.00 does that mean we will not be
prosecuting?

Bob - Just a simple charge you are making.

Richard - So you can do civil and criminal?

Bob — This is a miscellaneous service charge for someone who has unauthorized electric/water meter
that is not a criminal offense.

Richard — So this does not apply to an illegal hook up after disconnection?
Bob - If you have an ordinance you can prosecute as a crime.
Mavyor Cury — Recess for 10 minutes

Mayor Cury — Council will come to order, we recessed to give Mr. Altizer an opportunity to clarify Doug's
question which was “Can you pass on ordinance on utilities/electrics on an emergency measure.

Bob — The provision | think that Mr. Ratliff is referring to is Section 3.8, paragraph (c) Ordinances
appropriating money for any emergency may be passed as emergency measures, but no measure
providing for the sale or lease of town property, or making a grant, renewal, or extension of a franchise

9



or other special privilege, or regulating the rate to be charged for its service by any public utility, shall be
so passed. Richlands is not a public utility as defined in the Code of Virginia this has no application to
adopting the rates that you charge for the Town of Richlands. You may adopt as an emergency measure
so it is in effect sooner than 30 days. | have spoken to John he said it is not really going to make any
difference to the Town whether this goes into effect on 9-27 or in 30 days. My legal opinion it was
researched and lawsuit that is still pending against the Town of Richlands on those ordinances. | tried to
get a hold of him but he is involved in Town Council meeting in Tazewell but | know he researched the
issue and public utility as used in Charter is not a public utility that includes the Town of Richlands define
for the Code of Virginia. Yes you may adopt as an emergency measure and make effective 9-27-2021.
Town Manager says it don’t make an difference if goes in effect on that day or 30 days from adoption, so
if you want to adopt as a regular measure or without it being an emergency measure goes into effect
October 15, it will not affect the way you do the billing.

Mayor Cury - John as the Manager do you have an opinion how you would like to see the Council act?

John - Either way, if you want to be a little more precautious you can go into effect 30 days is fine in the
end it is the same result.

Mayor Cury — Would you rather avoid any hint of misunderstanding, and go with regular ordinance
instead of emergency to avoid any conflict?

John - I think that would be the best option.

Bob - If that is the Council’s desire, adopt as not an emergency measure just adopt and be in effect 30
days hence.

Mayor Cury - Richard made the motion and Mike seconded it, | will ask for a clarification.
Richard — Can you strike the 9/27 on this ordinance and add the 10/15 without us having to meet again?

Bob — It was intended to go into effect 9/27 that is what the Town Manager wanted in order to do that it
had to be an emergency measure. It can be stricken and go into effect 30 days hence.

John - Connie can change and we can vote tonight.
Bob - It is not part of the ordinance.

Mayor Cury — For accuracy tonight when he makes the motion he needs to make not as an emergency
measure but effective October 15, 2021.

Richard - Do | need to rescind the motion again?

10



Mayor Cury - | would take it all back and start over.
Richard - | will take it back.
Mike - | will take it back too.

Richard — | make the motion to adopt this ordinance regarding the rate schedules and riders to be
effective October 15, 2021 pursuant to 3.8 of the Richlands Town Charter, Mike seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury - Motion regarding the rate schedules and riders to take effect on bills rendered effective
October 15, 2021.

Doug - Before we pass this | would like to make a suggestion, if you look at the paper it says Electric
Service, we provide a service for the citizens, a service is not something you are supposed to make a
profit on. You are supposed to be helping the citizens that is why you call it an electric service instead of
making and adopting these high rates that are going to put a hardship on the citizens why could we not
consider mirroring AEP rates and have the same structure and the same rates as they do and you would
still make a hefty profit. We buy our rates a lot cheaper wholesale just like AEP and that would be a
compromise and we are still providing service and helping our citizens and still make a profit if we
reconsider this and mirror AEP rates | would ask the Council to consider that.

John - 1 would like to highlight one correction on page 17 at the top of the Page where it says “Small”
should be “In Town Sewer Rates”.

Mayor Cury — Any more comments or matter of discussion?

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion

say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- No, Jeff- Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann —

Yes Motion carries —4/1

Mayor Cury — Ordinance 0-2021-08-02

Jeff — Read Ordinance 0-2021-08-02

Mayor Cury - The last wording that we have to consider and | will ask again for the counsel of Mr. Altizer

and Mr. O’Daniel. It reads this Ordinance be adopted as an emergency measure and take effect on bills
rendered after September 27%, 2021, would we adopt as an emergency measure.

Bob - As an emergency measure.

Mayor Cury - Do we have a motion to adopt Ordinance 2021-08-02 as written.

11



John - 1 would recommend

Mike - I make a motion that we adopt ordinance 2021-08-02 to be effective October 15 as pursuant to
Section 3.8 of the Richlands Town Charter.

Mayor Cury — Duly note he took out emergency measure and put in to take effect October 15.

Mary Ann - | seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- No, Jeff- Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann —
Yes Motion carries —4/1.

Mayor Cury — Ordinance 0-2021-08-03

Mary Ann - Read Ordinance 0-2021-08-03

Mayor Cury - Do | have a motion to put in effect Ordinance 0-2021-08-03, and use the similar language
to take out emergency measure and become effective October 15.

Mike - I make the motion that this Ordinance be adopted 0-2021-08-03 for bills rendered after October
15 as pursuant to Section 3.8 of the Richlands Town Charter, Richard seconded the motion.

Richard - On Ordinance 02,03,04 — On line number three on each ordinance it states that electric
increase on all three of the ordinances should it say electric or water or sewer.,

Mike — It is a typo.

Mayor Cury - We need to correct here before we vote on this.

Richard - We adopted the one that states rates for electric and it should have been water.

Mayor Cury - Ordinance 0-2021-08-03 - Richard please read the correct language so everyone is aware.

Richard - Line #3 ~ 0-2021-08-03 — “published in accordance with the Code of Virginia, 1950, as
amended, that the rates for “electric shall increase” should be “sewer shall increase”.

Mayor Cury - Line #3 - correction noted: that the rates for “electric shall increase” should be “sewer
shall increase”.

Mayor Cury - Motion made by Mike, seconded by Richard — corrections amended.

12



Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- No, Jeff- Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann —
Yes Motion carries —4/1.

Mayor Cury — Let’s return to Ordinance #2 and correct the language.

Mayor Cury — Be it Ordained {copy of ordinance rates for electric change to water)

Bob - The ordinance is actually Be It Ordained and down in the bottom you actually say water, to clear it
up it should say water and amend what we adopted to delete the word electric and put in the word
water.

Mayor Cury - We don’t want to have any shred of doubt of what we are doing.

Mike — | make the motion 0-2021-08-02 we amend the word electric to water as in the third line of the
first paragraph, Jeff seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call —=Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann
—Yes Motion carries —5/0.

Mayor Cury - 0-2021-08-04

Doug - Read Ordinance 0-2021-08-04

Mavyor Cury - Is there a motion to adopt this Ordinance?

Mike — I make a motion to adopt Ordinance 0-2021-08-04 effect 10-15-21 as pursuant to Section 3.8 of
the Richlands Town Charter, Richard second the motion.

Mavyor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- No, Jeff- Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann —
Yes Motion carries —4/1.

Mayor Cury - Greenspace Update

John - They have broken ground on the stage, they are waiting on some structural steel to come in so
they can move forward, they still hope for a November timeframe to complete. | will speak a little later

what are next steps are in Phase Il.

Mayor Cury - It is going to look really nice.

13



Mayor Cury — Consideration of Proposed Charter Changes — Please look at the Charter changes that was
placed in your packet they are numbered so we can easily turn to the changes and follow. Please turn to
Page 11, #1 — Each member of Council shall be limited to two (2) consecutive elected terms in office.
After serving two (2) consecutive terms, the member shall not run for a third full 4-year term. After the
member has not been a member of Council for four (4) years they will be eligible for a final four (4) year
term for a total of 12 years of service. Term served as an appointed member of Council shall not count
toward the term limit described above. |think we should vote on these individually, is Council
agreeable?

Council — Yes

Mayor Cury — | am fine with term limits | feel it does complicate the matter to have two (2) on one (1)
off, I think it would be better to have two (2) terms and call it a good day. Simplicity works.

Jeff - OK

Mike —You talked about it last time at the meeting. Do we have to have any additional meetings if we
change this?

John - We will send the recommendations to the General Assembly, as long as there is a consensus. |
don’t want to send something and get it approved and then it is not what Council wants.

Bob - Your Charter is adopted by the General Assembly. You are asking the General Assembly to change.

Richard - What is the cost of the Charter change? We changed the Charter back in 2012/2013 and it was
a considerable cost at that time.

Bob - | don’t know Richard, it would be one of your local legislators to approve these requests, | don’t
know if there is any charge.

Richard - There is a charge, | do remember that.

Bob — Do you know the charge to whom and by whom?

Richard - | think it was around $10,000, it didn’t matter how many changes were made to the Charter,
the reason | brought this up we need to make all the changes we are going to make this time so we pay
the one fee.

Bob - | can’t speak to that | don’t know.

Mayor Cury - | was on Council but | don’t remember the charges.

14



Mary Ann — If we recommend it and approved by our legislator would be effect 2022.

Bob - You would submit to the next term which would be 2022.

Doug - | am OK with the term limits but | want to explain why | will vote “no” not that | am against term
limits but it is intermixed with other things we are changing in the Charter and 1don’t want to put a
vote to change the Charter with those other changes . If it was only that one (1) change | would vote
yes. But since you have so many different changes that | disagree with, | will vote “no” on all of them. 1
just want to explain why | am voting “no”. | am not against term limits | am for them | don’t want to

intermix with other changes.

Mayor Cury - In other words you don’t want a yes vote, we are going to consider each one separately
and render a decision separately. You want it all or nothing.

Doug — Yes, | don’t think with all these changes we should mess with the Charter. | will vote “no” on
every one of them. If this was only one (1) | would vote yes. Since it is mixed with all these others  can’t

consciously vote yes.

Mayor Cury - Mike correct me if | am wrong this had been a suggestion that you had proposed, do you
have any thoughts about altering this to two (2) terms, three (3) terms?

Mike - | am ready to alter it to two (2) terms and make it simple.

Mike - | make a motion to change the Town Charter 3.2, Nominations and Elections to (1) Each member
of Council shall be limited to two (2) consecutive elected terms in office.

John - Do you want to say consecutive or two (2) terms?

Mike - Two (2) consecutive.

Richard - Nothing would keep you from not running again if it is consecutive.
Mike - We can take out consecutive; make it as simple as possible.

Doug - | think the best thing for me to do is abstain.

Mayor Cury - Can you repeat how you want to word it again.

Mike - Each member of Council shall be limited to two (2) elected terms in office.

Mayor Cury - Strike all the rest.

15



Mike — Strike all the rest and {(2) Time served as an appointed member of Council shall not count toward
the term limit described above. That is my motion.

Doug - Did you say Council; is the Mayor consider part of the Council?

Mayor Cury - By the Charter | am not a member of Council but | can speak thereof, | do think the
strange language, | am not too worried about it, it says the Attorney represents all these people and
works for the Town government but never says he represents the Mayor, | think that is something we
should consider. Clarifying language, it does not bother me but it is a huge consideration because | am
part of the government and any Mayor been here is part of the government, our attorneys represent

the government and we are the government, | am bringing it up because it is important.

Richard — Councilmen Hurst is running for re-election to fill the expired term, does his one (1) year count
toward the {4) year term or is it a full (4) year term.

Mayor Cury — | think you have an excellent question which | am not trying to slow the process but what |
really want to say this is such important language and we could walk away thinking that question didn’t
come to me, we need to be cautious.

Doug - It wouldn’t be a full term.

Richard — It does not say full term; change it to a full 4-year term.

Doug - Would that be correct?

Mayor Cury - Just states elected, | only brought the example of the Mayor up because the attorney
represents the Mayor too and the members of Council but it does specifically say it.

Jeff - Theoretically you could be elected for the two (2) remaining years of the term.

Richard - Then you would only serve six (6) years instead of the full eight (8) if you run for re-election.
Jeff — Right do we want to make year limits?

Mayor Cury — Caution, Caution

Mary Ann - For two (2) four (4) year terms, you could be elected for one (1) year and four (4) for a total
of five (5) and that is it.

Mayor Cury - We are thinking two (4) year terms but that is not what it says, it is loose language.

16



Doug - What you were saying about the attorney, to me | think it would cheat the Mayor's position, |
look at it as being three (3) parts of the government, Town Manager, Mayor as the Head and we have
Council. [ think they should remain separate. | think if you were part of the Council it would reduce the
Mayor’s position.

Mayor Cury - | am not a member of Council but | can speak thereof that is what it says. What | am talking
about is a different topic, | got off topic please forgive me, we need to stick with this.

John - Each Councilmember shall be limited to two {4) year terms in office.

Mike — Each member of Council shall be limited to two (4) year elected terms in office, (2) time served as
an appointed member of Council or special election shall not count toward the term limit described
above.

Mayor Cury — Time served as an appointed member of Council and special election.

Jeff - Special elected member of Council.

Mayor Cury — Time served as an appointed member of Council to not count toward the term limit. Time
served as a member thru special election does not count toward the term limit as described above.

Mike - Makes it simple.

Mayor Cury - | think it needs to be two (2) sentences.

Mike — Time served as an appointed member of Council shall not be counted toward the term limit
above. Time served as a member of Council via special election shall not count toward the term limits as
described above.

Mayor Cury — Do you want to vote on this one and move on?

Council - Yes

John - Do | need to put the term, “Does not apply to the Mayor”.

Mayor Cury - It just says Council, | don’t think it needs to be said unless you really want it.

Mike - I make the motion to amend the Richlands Charter for 3.2 Nominations and Elections to state (1)
Each member of Council shall be limited to two (4) year elected terms in office (2) Time served as an
appointed member of Council shall not count to the term limits described above (3) Time served as a

member of Council via Special Election shall not count toward the term limit as described above. Mary
Ann seconded the motion.

17



Richard — Is there anything that limits or grandfathers any members?

Mike - Based on the conversations | have had with our State Senator they don’t believe it is possible to
be retroactive and be in effect 2022.

Richard - So everybody would be eligible for two (2) more terms.

Mike - Based on my understanding.

Richard - It's not going to be me.

Mayor Cury - In my instance where | was elected four (4) times to serve on the Council it doesn’t count. |
can run two (2) more times.

Mike — As young as you are you got it.

Jeff —What if the situation happens down the road where Rod stays elected and the same situation
happens, your elected term even though you accept the Mayor’s position during your elected term of
office count?

John - You can serve a four (4) year term as a member of Council.

Mayor Cury - We think things won’t happen until they do; we don’t have it nailed down flat.

Doug - The Mayor is only elected for two (2) years.

Jeff —What if it happens again?

Mary Ann - If it happened again you would have not served your full four (4} years so you would have
another four (4) year term.

Mayor Cury - | think so.

Jeff - That is why I think we should make it years.

Mayor Cury - Let’s keep it simple, if we make a goof someone else can fix it. What a terrible thing to say
as the Mayor but it is life itself.

Mayor Cury - There is a motion and a second on the floor anymore discussion?

Jeff -1 am leaning toward of saying “No” because | want more clarification.

18



Mayor Cury - Jeff this is why | am saying, | am for some of these but not all of them but this kind of
wording is so important.

John - You think it would be better to do some type of workshop.

Mayor Cury - | think it would be better for the language, | have made so many mistakes in my life over a
word and | goofed up so | am using myself as an example.

Jeff - We have had a long meeting and we are mentally fried and we are trying to make changestoa
Charter.

Mary Ann - | think it is important we need to do a workshop.

Mayor Cury — I am saying caution, caution and I'm not trying to wear everyone out, but | am tired too.
We will abandon this and set a date for a workshop.

Mike — This one was supposed to be easy and we have four (4} more to go.
Mayor Cury - Mr. Altizer are you in tune.

Bob — Yes, this is a policy issue and not a legal issue. | can advise you as far as legality with the
procedures you must follow but your wording is very important, your words will reflect your policy,
wording is where lawyers make a lot of money. If you don’t get the wording right there is going to be
lawsuits and disputes, like what does this mean, does this apply to me, when does it go into effect all
that is very important, you need to be very careful about adopting a policy and making sure the wording
is reflecting that policy. |think it is a really good idea because this is your constitution, it is important
and this is the one document that governs the government of the Town of Richlands you need to be
careful on what you say and do. | think it is an excellent idea to have a workshop and discuss these
issues and have time to think about them and look at different options and reflect on those and get
everyone’s opinion and then adopt something at a later date.

Mayor Cury — | appreciate your wise counsel and | am sure everyone here does.

Mary Ann - What is the latest date we need to have the changes made to give to our Senator? We are
not in any rush at this moment.

Mayor Cury - | don’t know exactly, I think Mike has talked to Senator Hackworth and it goes to legislative
services where they fine tune all this. 1 am not aware of a cost, | really don’t know so | can’t say anything
about that. | think they will abide by our wishes but they will fine tune the words and make sure
everything is right with the Code of Virginia and not in violation of anything. | am guessing but | think
that is how it works.

19



Bob - At lot of times you don’t have to reinvent the wheel, you can look at other Charters and see how
other jurisdictions have handled term limits, look at the language they used in Wythe or Buchanan
County or Richmond get some input and some choices and make sure you are doing what you want to
do.

Mayor Cury - | suggest we wait and do at a workshop. We will set the date at the end of the meeting.
Mike - | will rescind my motion, Jeff, | withdraw my second.

Mayor Cury — Consideration of Cancellation of Previous Ordinances — | will ask the Town Manager to
help with this one.

John — 1 will pass around the list, these were ordinances that were adopted but were not truly in place, |
wanted to scratch from our records so we don’t have issues in the future. Based on Connie’s notes | will
ask for a motion to void out the ones highlighted in “yellow” to void and we have one (1) Resolution that
needs to be changed, just need a motion to clean up what we did the last four (4)/five (5) months.

Mike - Do we do all these at once?

Mayor Cury - The cnes that are in the column “Action Needed — Void”, those are the ones we need to
take action on. Is there a motion from Council to Void the Garbage Fee Ordinance 0-2021-06-04, Utility
Rate Schedule, 0-2021-06-05, Water Rate Ordinance — 0-2021-06-06, Sewer Rate Ordinance 0-2021-06-
07, Electric Rate Ordinance 0-2021-06-08, and Budget Ordinance 0-2021-06-09 those are the ones that

we need to void. Is there a motion from Council to void the ones | just read?

John - We also need to update the Blue Ridge Agency to the correct Resolution R-2021-06-01, we had
the wrong number on that one needs updated to the correct number.

Mayor Cury - | think we will have two (2) motions. Is there a motion to void these ordinances?
Mike - | make the motion, Mary Ann seconded the motion.

Doug - All we are voiding is the yellow, what about the column “Approved in Final Form”.

John — Those are already adopted, the ones in yellow are on the agenda for tonight.

Doug - So we don’t have to do anything on those?

John — Those are the final ones that are in place, all the ones in yellow above are the ones we are
voiding out.

20



Doug - What | didn’t want to do, there is still a court case and I didn’t want to void anything out until
that case has been done.

John - Those are the ones we voted on before and had been re-voted on either at the 6/21 meeting or
today.

Doug - | think the only one it would affect is the Real Estate. In the court case those were passed with
Mary Ann voting that has really not been decided yet. We can go ahead and pass except for the Real
Estate and Personal Property, two (2) has to be passed by a certain date, | don’t think this would affect
those two (2). You see what | am getting at.

Bob ~ No

Bob - These ordinances were adopted in June those are the ones subject to a lawsuit, those ordinances
are not been effective by what you are doing here.

Doug — Ok

Bob — Correct John?

John —Yes

Doug — | was just saying if the Town was to lose the case it would have an effect on those taxes.

Mayor Cury - | am trying to help understand, the ones we are voting on are in bright yellow, we don’t
need them.

Doug — Ok, | agree.

Mayor Cury — That is simple

Doug - The only thing | am saying the ones in yellow won’t be affected by the lawsuit.

Bob - I don’t think those have anything to do with the lawsuit.

Mayor Cury — No bearing, | hope that helped. They won’t affect anything we just don’t need them.

Mayor Cury - Mike made the motion, Mary Ann seconded the motion.

21



Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call —-Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann
—Yes Motion carries — 5/0.

Mavyor Cury — Consider the update on the Blue Ridge Power Resolution. R-2021-06-01 voted on June 8,
2021 and passed.

John - The R-2021-06-01 is what it should be, | can’t remember what it was in the past.
Jeff - The original Resolution had a different number, it should be R-2021-06-01.
Mayor Cury - Is there a motion?

Mike - | make the motion that we update the number for the Blue Ridge Agency Resolution R-2021-06-
01, Mary Ann seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call -Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann
—Yes Motion carries —5/0.

Mayor Cury — Consideration of Resolution to Increase Credit Limit

John - The bank requires a Resolution for credit cards, as we spoke a few months ago about adding
credit cards for our EMS, Police and the Town for when they might need to purchase something on the
Town’s behalf. When we add the credit cards to the credit limit, we run into the issue. If | spent $1000
and someone else spent a $1000 and we were at the $5000 limit and used the card it would be declined.
Increasing the umbrella to $20,000 each card has what is needed.

Mike — Has that happened before?

Mary Ann - | make a motion that we adopt R-2021-09-01 to increase the credit limit. (Mary Ann read the
resolution) | make the motion to approve R-2021-09-01, Mike seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call —-Doug- Yes, Jeff- Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann
—Yes Motion carries —5/0.

Mayor Cury — Discussion of COVID-19 Procedures

John — I have two handouts to pass out, one (1) is from Eric Young, it is what the County is doing and the
second one is how we are mirroring what they are doing. We are requiring the public who enter town

22



offices to wear a mask inside. If they are in the vehicle doing their job it is not necessary when they are
doing their job.

Mike - What is our current policy if you say you have an employee that test positive and he has exposed
another employee?

Mike — What did we do before?

John - 1 will have to look at?

Richard — If you were quarantined before | think the government would reimburse the Town funds that
would offset the cost of the employees who had to take sick leave and encourage them not to come to
work sick with everybody. | think those funds are expired now.

John - 1think its mandated and give them so many hours off if they had a sick child, now if employees
are sick they can take sick time unless they fall under counties they got the vaccine and stay at home
due to the Health Department they would get additional time off, most of our employees.

Richard - Do you know how many of our employees have been vaccinated?

John - 1 am not sure. We only have record for the ones that got the vaccination at the Police
Department.

Mayor Cury - As far as vaccinations they were made available to our employees.

John - They have.

Mayor Cury - Who is doing it, the Hospital?

John - They did one at the Police Department?

Mayor Cury - | want to mention one thing it may be beneficial as well, Appalachian Agency is offering
vaccinations and they will come to the Town Hall and vaccinate people. It is very convenient if they want
it. | want to offer that again on behalf of Appalachian Agency. | spoke to Regina Salyers she is the head
of it, it is a huge operation. They want to do it, it is something to consider.

Mayor Cury - On the Covid Policy | just want ask is there a date on this?

John - Will be starting tomorrow, just wanted to give our employees notice. | just wanted to propose to
Council to make sure everyone was in agreement with it and you are aware of it.

23



Mike — What happens if an employee is not vaccinated and is out of sick time and has been exposed and
is order by Virginia Department of Health?

John - We would try to help them out.

Jeff — That is what makes it difficult and with the Health Department as well. When they have been
exposed and they know they don’t have any sick leave the temptation not to tell the truth, that is one of
the biggest problems now.

Mike - How many employees come to work with sinus infection because they don’t have any sick time
left? That is my concern, | am all about vaccination, | am vaccinated but it is a personal preference. | am
kind of on the fence should we not give them help if it was not available and they don’t have the time.
How are other municipalities handling it?

Mayor Cury — Other municipalities and groups such as the school system which has a lot of people. |
think last year we had Covid pay this year we don’t and it creates problems. In this entity | think we are
trying to do the right thing and the best thing so people don’t lose hours and money on their earnings if
they are forced to quarantine, is that what you are trying to say?

Mike — Yes, | would encourage everyone to get a vaccine but that is not up to me.

Mayor Cury - | am not talking about that | am talking about Covid pay.

Mike - If they don’t have any leave balance and they have been exposed.

Mayor Cury - | have a suggestion and this involves money, we are in a health crisis in my opinion in this
community, | think we should take this up in a work session. It is a big thing and we need to figure out

how we are going to help our employees.

Mary Ann - Due to the urgency, leave it to our Town Manager and HR Manager and having no doubt
John would do the right thing . Several months ago | brought it up and Heather came and spoke.

Richard - We extended if though the Federal Government had stopped it.

Mary Ann — Right

Mayor Cury — We did, how did that work previously?

John - We give them up to a week, we are careful and not give them two (2) weeks and feel somebody
taking advantage of our generosity.

24



Mayor Cury - | think we can work with that it is a start, it has to be broad latitude not case by case. |
would ask that Council consider that.

John -1 think give them up to five (5) days.
Mayor Cury — You would have to have some criteria you could not just call in.

John - If someone lives in their household or they have to take care of someone one, we do similar what
was in place with the Federal government.

Mike - And you should still provide all the copies of the orders.

John - If they take a day or two and you know they are going to earn it when they come back, we don’t
like to run into a deficit but under certain circumstances we could give that opportunity.

Mayor Cury - Other members of Council how do you feel?

Doug — | will go along with John and leave it to his discretion.

John - We will have some guidelines that we will follow.

Jeff - The biggest issue to me is being honest and forthcoming with anybody involved and that is what
we want to promote is to make sure the employee understands the consequences of what they have
and what they can do. Sometimes | don’t think people realize what they can do and what they are
capable of spreading. I think that is the normality of the situation, it is difficult but if we tackle it head
on you are upfront we can work with you.

John — Either say have to go home or required to be tested before they come back to work.

Mike - Needs to be some lead-way there.

John - | can give you an update in about a month to let you know how it is working.

Mike - Since we are spending money does in need to be in a form of a motion.

Mayor Cury - | will defer to John but we are giving you some latitude so it gives you the power, your
discretion that is what we are calling for. | sit here and look at Richard Brown he was gravely ill last year
and thank God he is here, it is serious.

Doug - | can make a motion.

Richard - If he is not spending anything yet we don’t need a motion.

25



Mayor Cury - | hope the employees know that Council is considering their health and their wellbeing. Do
we need to read the Covid policy, has everyone read it?

John - Consideration of Public Access Channel replacing You Tube Stream — We will try to have up before
our next Council meeting so | wanted to ask if we need to continue with the You Tube. You Tube was
put in place because people could not come to the meetings. Do you want to do You Tube since we now
are starting to shut back down or we can wait and discuss at a later time?

Mayor Cury - I think we need all forms of communication that we can employ because any way possible
communication helps the public. It contributes to our sense of transparency, if people don’t have
Spectrum | don’t think they can get the Access Channel. You Tube is another avenue and | think we
should employ everything possible to disseminate information as much as possible.

Mike — Any cost?

John - The cost is on the IT, if Frank is not here.

Mayor Cury - | just think we need to do it.

Mayor Cury - Is Tazewell on You Tube live?

John - 1 don’t know?

Mary Ann - | know we will have to continue for a while because of Covid so we can address later.
Doug - So you will do them both?

John - We hope to, hopefully they will come next week and set up the Public Access Channel and set up
on the network.

Mayor Cury - Greenspace Phase Il Grant Application

John — As you know the Phase | was thru Cumberland Plateau for funding for the stage, we anticipate
applying for Phase Il for $50,000. Ashley is putting together the things that were left out of the original
scope of the project, looks like it is going to be $62,808, the grant is for $50,000, before we apply |
wanted to get Council’s go ahead. If we did this the additional money would have to be allocated. Right
now we wanted to finish some projects we already started, if we can use that money to get more money
looks like to me it is a win win. We have two (2) quotes, the higher one has LED Marquee Signh which is
about $9000 that is something we could drop or keep just depending on where the Council wants to
keep the budget. It is something that would be nice to have but it is not a necessary item. | would like
to have a consensus for applying for the grant and wanted you to be aware there would be some cost to
us; | think it would be a good investment.

26



Richard - What is George’s labor?

John — They were going have to do some of the sidewalks, curbing, etc.

Richard — You are talking about George West?

Richard —Yes

Mike - The marquee sign, what is it going to say?

Connie - You can make announcements for events, concerts and that type of things.
Mike - Is there any maintenance on this one?

Jeff is looking at the turf, | know there is some maintenance on that, | don’t think it would be much
maintenance that is not aiready out there.

Jeff - The biggest thing as far as the turf is ultra violet rays that gives your worst damage as opposed to
up keep, we even talked about sodding it or trying to keep grass but it limits you if you have rain or bad

weather or anything like that, traffic could ruin it, we talked about the turf being a more viable option.

John - We have been talking about the maintenance and the cost, the projector, i don’t know if it is
something we store here and take it down there, and we will get more details on things like that.

leff - What are the chances on the grant?

Connie - They should get it, we received $124,000 last time.

Mayor Cury — Is this thru Cumberland Plateau?

Connie —Yes

Mayor Cury - We will get it.

Connie - They know the building materials went up and we didn’t have enough money.
John - I will keep you up-to-date on the process.

Mike - What about a bathroom?

John - They will have to go to the Section House.

27



Mayor Cury - They are there and they are very nice. We were in a meeting recently and John said | know
why you are so protective since the bathrooms in Town have been vandalized. | will say this and it is
important it is just a matter of trying to protect Town property. When we use them and they are very
nice, we try to make sure adults are there are someone in authority so they don’t become vandalized.
Richard asked that in previous meeting before you came John, about bathrooms at the greenway, we
said the bathrooms were part of the Section House.

Richard - When you have small kid there playing you don’t always have time to make it to the Section
House.

John - Hopefully the Library or the Post Office is open.

Richard — Can we plant some hedges??

Mayor Cury — It is OK, it has been practice for thousands of years, nothing new.
Mayor Cury - Utility Disconnections Update

John —Just wanted to give you an update on starting to cut off utilities. A few weeks ago we set up
$129,000 in payment plans we are still finishing up the paperwork and getting into our system that
accounts for a large portion of what we had. We have around $38,000 not included in $129,000 that
people have not set up a payment arrangement. | anticipate a little more difficult to collect it may be
people who own $5000/$6000 bill they are not able to pay that amount or not being here to make
payment arrangements. People making arrangements have already started paying their payments or
starting next month.

Mayor Cury — Consideration of Property Donation

John —This is something you all discussed before | got here, it is the property located on Iron Street the
Simmons Rand property; they talked to us about potentially taking the property as a donation. | wanted
to have a discussion with Council to see if it is something you are still interested in and if it is we can
have further discussion with them. | have a copy of the map if anyone needs to see that as well. You can
take the time to review the information and later make a decision to forward with their proposal.

Mayor Cury - This is the Iron Street property?

John —They are looking at some more mediation, they wanted to make sure we still wanted the
property and be the recipient of it, they wanted to follow up on the Town.

28



Mayor Cury - | had brief conversations about this property with some folks they have done a
tremendous amount of work of clean up over there and willing to do more. If it is something we would
want, you want to hold that for consideration John.

John - 1 would like for you to take some time to read this and give it some thought and discuss either at
the workshop or at the next meeting. They are eager to get this property off their books | want to make
sure we take the time to make the right decision.

Jeff - Do we have plans for this property?

Mayor Cury - There were multiple ideas Jeff we can probably talk about in the work session, nothing
concrete but thoughts.

Mayor Cury - We will take a 10 minute recess.

Mayor Cury - We are going to resume our business, Council reconvenes.

Mayor Cury — Electric Discussion — PCA, Solar and Battery Options

John — GPS is going to do a presentation on our utilities; we will talk about PCA, Solar and Battery
options and how our system will handle the peak demands in the summer and the winter. GPS and Blue
Ridge will come to a work shop and explain how this would affect our system and any of the items we
want to pursue for the electric and utility. | would like to get direction from Council.

Jeff - | think they did a presentation this year, is this different options, | thought it was pretty interesting.
Mike - Any workshop that we can learn about the electric is certainly good.

John - I will reach out to them to get a date and reach out to Council to see what works for you.

Mayor Cury - So we will wait to hear from you.

Mayor Cury — Miscellaneous

John — We have had a couple people to reach out on Face book asking when Halloween was going to be.
I spoke to Chief Gilbert his recommendation based on the past is to make Halloween, Saturday October

30 from 5:30pm to 8:00pm if Council is good with that.

Jeff - I make a motion to have Trick or Treat Saturday, October 30 from 5:30pm to 8:00pm, Mike
seconded the motion.

29



Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. General Vote — All Yes

John - FYI - Update on the schedule for the Waste Water Treatment Plant, we are close to getting it out
to bid. It is an updated timeline. We will wait and see what the bids come in at.

John — Barry Alley has resigned from the IDA, we will need to find someone to take his spot. If you have
anyone who you would want to appoint to IDA tonight or someone our next meeting.

Mike - Did he give a reason?

John —1don’t have his letter, but | will send it to each of you.

Mayor Cury - It is up to Council if they want to appoint someone,

Mary Ann - | was going to say, Larry Worrell delivered a letter to me today and did ask that [ read the
letter (read the letter) Larry Worrell resigned from IDA.

Mayor Cury - We have two (2) open seats, Chairman and Co-Chair. Any more open seats on the IDA? |
know there was someone who was nominated who would probably like to be on the IDA, it is a person
sitting in this room, | don’t know how Council feels but this is an opportunity.

Mike - | don’t know if he wants on it or not.

Mayor Cury - | have no idea | am only suggesting.

Richard - How many members are on the IDA?

Mayor Cury - It is in the By-Laws and | will have to look.

Jeff - If they don’t have a quorum they can’t conduct business.

Mayor Cury - That is my understanding.

John - It is six (6).

Mayor Cury - According to the By-Laws it is seven (7).

Richard - Do we have the authority as the Council to disband the IDA and to reform with new members?

Mayor Cury - This is my understanding and | act with no authority, they operate independently from the
Council but the Council appoints members to the IDA but it is a separate entity. John had mentioned

30



previously about potentially allocating funds so they could do some work that he felt was important.
They operate independently they do have to confer with us such as other Commissions do. | may be
incorrect but the membership is up to the Council. | guess thatis why Larry sent his resignation to the
Council.

Richard - Just speaking on being on the Council prior, we have acted many times for recommendations
for the Planning Commission, Rec Commission and we have also denied recommendations. | don’t know
if the vote made last month to appoint Ms. White to the Board of the IDA has caused these resighations.
It is not unusual for us as a Council not to take a recommendation from any Commission.

Mayor Cury - The membership is up to the Council. The IDA has an independence of its own. As the
Planning Commission and Rec Commission do not. Funding must come from Council. Once they have
funding it is theirs to do with. That is my understanding. Do you remember when it was formed?
Richard — | do. It was formed by the Council.

Mayor Cury - It was the power of the Council to form the Richlands IDA.

Richard — Is it the power of the Council to dishand the [DA?

Mayor Cury - | would think so but | will refer to the Town Attorney on that one.

Richard - They won’t be able to meet if they don’t have a quorum based on the fact they have
resignations.

Mayor Cury — We know of two (2) resignations, Barry & Larry, possibly if we had two (2) people
appointed to the IDA it could be effective and once we hear of another vacated seat we could fill that
too without disbanding it, just a suggestion. Does Council want to appoint someone tonight it is in your
power to do it?

Jeff - 1 know we had someone who was willing to serve before.

Jeff - 1 make a motion to nominate Blake Ray, Mary Ann seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury - Blake would you be willing to accept a position on the IDA?

Blake — To be honest | will have to think about it.

Mayor Cury — Seven days?

Blake - t don’t know if | want to be part of an organization that didn’t have the support from the
governing body and last month you didn’t do that so | don’t know, | know | have value to add.

31



Mayor Cury - That is a consideration that you can decide. Could you decide by the weekend on
Saturday?

Blake — Sure

Mayor Cury - Can you let the Town Manager know?

Blake — I will.

Mayor Cury - Will you let me know, you can email or call me.

Mayor Cury - We will delay that motion.

Mary Ann - | would like to appoint Craig Earls to serve on the IDA, Jeff seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Doug- Yes, Jeff-Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann — Yes
Motion carries — 5/0.

Mayor Cury - Will you take the proper action to inform him and get him sworn in.

John - The motion on Blake you want to get that accepted based on his acceptance.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Doug- Yes, Jeff-Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann — Yes

Motion carries — 5/0.

Mayor Cury - That will fill two (2) seats depending on Blake’s decision and we honor that. We will have
to see if there is another seat available.

Jeff - | would like to thank Barry and Larry for their service to the Town.

Mayor Cury - Thank you Barry Alley and Larry Worrell for your service to the Town and the IDA and Larry
Worrell for being on the Council a crucial component and | always enjoyed serving with him.

Mayor Cury - Attorney Comments —~ Bob Altizer — Foreclosure Update

Bob — This is regarding the tax sales on Fairfax, Brian Pyott wrote an email to John on July 30 nothing has
changed since that time, no sale pending at the circuit court, we recommend Wayne’s prior assessment
nuisances/blight ordinances consider to be adopted and then proceedings to collection would be the
most efficient manner with the property sold and avoid an appearance of desperate treatment between

32



the properties by moving on which blighted structures exist over the other properties. According to
what we suggest blight/nuisances ordinances get passed first and the properties that fall under that
category as immediate target properties for sale and then go forward with the each of the sales of
properties.

Mary Ann - What does that mean?

Bob — Did Wayne propose to specific blight?

John - | sent to you.

Bob - | will go back and see where we are, we will work with John on that.

John - Tax abatement with the County.

Mike - That was one of Rod’s concerns was the abatement with the County. We need it, it is important.
Mayor Cury - | am confused.

Mike - A few months ago we introduced some blight ordinances and we got to our second reading a
concern of yours was the County abatement of taxes, | think it has fell between the cracks a little bit, we
have not addressed yet. We will get back on top of that.

Mayor Cury - Does not have anything to do with the sale of the property does it?

Mike — It does that is what they are waiting on. They are waiting on those ordinances to sell those
properties. It is going to be easier to foreclose or sell those properties.

Bob - To sell those properties if they are designated under those blight ordinances.

Mayor Cury - | will research it, | think what | was talking about were credits on a different thing from the
County.

Mary Ann — What about a timeline for those people who have been waiting forever, it is not anyone’s
fault. They thought on June 14 the problem was going to end. First we will have to adopt the
ordinance, the blight and nuisance ordinance, and maybe we can dispense with the second reading. If
we are fortunate and we move fast, | just want to get a timeline for these people. | would be here next
month livid, it is not our fault but we cannot keep an Attorney for obvious reasons, what they were told
did not happen. It is not your fault but we had an attorney that assured us that June 14 was supposed to
be the sale. It is so embarrassing.

Bob - Wasn’t my fault | was not here.

33



Mary Ann - There is a lot of reasons why we don’t have an attorney. | am very thankful that your firm
will represent us. Realistically, maybe first of the year, right? We have passed the ordinance; have the
first reading maybe dispense with the second reading.

Mike — May have to have another public hearing.

Mary Ann — At least they know we are trying.

John — 1 will try getting a timeline of what the next steps will be at the next meeting.

Mary Ann - | guess Bob would write the Ordinance.

Bob - Brad has looked into this and he is the one who made the report to John. 1didn’t have any
background information of what was recorded back in July; nothing has happened since July that | know
of on our end. | will work with John to see where we are and what we need to do to go forward.

Doug — The guy said he would sign the property over free of charge, could you talk to him?

Mary Ann - Are you talking about Linwood Drive?

Doug - Yes, he wants to get rid of it, why go thru all of this. If he gives it to the Town, would be a fot
quicker if you go to him and he gives to the Town free of charge just to get rid of it. Would that be a lot
quicker? That would get rid of what you are embarrassed about.

Mary Ann - | am more embarrassed about the one we have talked about for a couple of years. They
were given answers by our previous attorney, on June 14 at 9:00am on the steps of the Tazewell County
Court House there would be a sale. It is embarrassing for me to say what happened.

Mayor Cury - The only thing you can say is he left.

Mary Ann - They know that.

Mayor Cury - Don’t make you feel any better but | get it Mary Ann.

Mary Ann — The Linwood Drive property is horrendous as well. The property on Fairfax we have been
talking about for two (2) years.

Doug - If we could get the property deeded to the Town that is part of the problem.

34



Bob - We need to put our heads together to see what we can do, | will discuss with Brad. He is on
vacation this week, and | will talk to him next week. He may have some background on this that | don’t
have. We will coordinate with John.

Mary Ann - | know there is more dilapidated property and people say why do these two (2) get pushed
to the front, they have been discussed longer.

Bob - That is what the nuisance ordinance is supposed to be push properties to the top of the line.
Mary Ann - Is Wayne available for Brad or you to speak to?

Bob - Nothing was filed. On June 14 there was supposed to be a sale no proceedings was brought for any
sale to happen.

Mike - If they give you all our information is there timelines as far as our readings. Can they just hand
over and you take over? How would that work?

Bob — | don’t know what Mr. McClanhan did or did not do. John gave me a box of things tonight and |
have no idea what is in there.

Mike - Just let us know.

Mary Ann - | appreciate it and | know the citizens are watching and they see we are doing what we can
and | am pushing hard.

Mayor Cury - Council Member Reports (Non-voting Items)

Jeff —1 did want to talk about a couple of things as far as the ARPA money is concerned and what we
may be able to invest some money into. One of the biggest things is a project that is near and dear to my
heart the last three (3) or four (4) years is artificial turf field for the sports complex at the Rec Park when
we talk about doing some revitalization especially with the tennis courts, soccer field and the baseball
fields over there right now. | have had a couple talks with our Town Manager about looking into
designating some of the money for an update for our facilities and this would be included in it. | have
been in discussions with a turf company out of North Carolina might be interested in coming up and
looking at it. A few years ago we had Lighthouse Engineering here in Pounding Mill do site plans, | have
here if you want to look at about his plan for putting a turf field down which would be conditioned for
multi sports, and two or three sports could use it. Would be aesthetically pleasing appeal at the Rec
Park toO with the facility we have right now. It would be a great opportunity for our youth to be
involved in different sports, weather dictates, field may be flooded if it rains. A turf field is pretty
convenient for 365 days a year if the weather permits, snow or freezing or something like that. Thatis
my shout out this month if we could maybe pursue that. | also looked at, | know Ms. Harris has already
left, there is a round of grants that are coming thru the Land and Conversation they are supposed to be

35



late Fall. There is a $500,000 matching grant that is available for projects for recreation facilities; soccer
fields are included in that. We have a lot of leg work completed for the application. | looked at the
guidelines we are project ready outside of a couple of public hearings, | think we could be pushed to the
front. Itis a great opportunity for us to have a better facility. 1don’t we could ever have enough
opportunity to have the funds that would really help us. | just wanted to present to Council and see
how you feel about it.

Mayor Cury - Several years ago you had mentioned the idea and asking for personal commitments. |
think it is still a good idea and my understanding maybe some of this money may be available that we
are going to get, is that right?

leff - Yes

Mayor Cury — | think it is worth pursuing.

Jeff - | just wanted you to look at what we done originally, changed a little bit of scope. | was talking to
the people this week they want to come up and look and give us some ideas about what is there and
what they can do as far as accommodating as many sports as we can on the field.

Mike — How many sports?

Jeff - Softball/Baseball, Soccer and Football anything off season. People could use it year around, they
could do the lines to do football one day and soccer the next, they will map them out for you.

Mike - Would the idea be to have the Richlands Football League use that field?

Jeff - Anybody could, you can put up field goal post if you want to use it. A couple ones | seen don’t use

field goal post but they can play midget football on them, you can still have a field. In the beginning we

talked about it being a soccer only facility but at this point if we can utilize these funds we can use for all
organizations. We can schedule and have people down there every day.

Richard - What do you need from Council?

leff — Basically a commitment with the money, we need to get a quote, the guys have to come and look
and give us a turnkey number what it would take to do it.

Mike - Would that be the next step?
Jeff —Yes, that is what | talked to him about. | don’t want to invite him here to look at it if we are not

going to do it but the same time we have to go thru the hoops of the process bids. In these renovations
we are not only looking at the field but tennis courts, parking area, fencing the biggest thing.

36



Mike - What help do you need with the grant?

Jeff — The grant process, that is a little more intricate. Hopefully if they do a round of grants, what | have
seen they move very quickly. If they announce the grants you have to have everything done. Alot of
people have ideas and submit their ideas for the money but the good thing with us we actually have site
plans and we could start the project in theory tomorrow, if we had all the requirements for the grant,
public hearings, why we are doing it and who it is going to serve and how many people are involved.
Those are the types that they look for qualifications.

Mary Ann - | would think we are way ahead of the game because of the plans you already have.
Jeff - There is one major hurdle and it is drainage, he wants his guys to come in and look at it as well.
Mayor Cury - Is all that being worked out as far as drainage and environment issues?

Jeff - Yes, it was worked out when Eric did it, flood plan, the grading excavation and things like that.
Mike - What are your next steps?

Jeff - I would probably reach out to him if Council is in favor. If we want to pursue this and something
we can look at, we have the funds available. Probably get him to look at a site visit and give us an
estimate.

Mayor Cury - The value of this Jeff, | can see it, but what is the value of this for us.

Jeff — I think it gives us a facility for our citizens not be only proud of but to be utilized year around and
have something they can go to, to participate and not have to worry about weather or the condition of
what is going to be down there, | think it would be second to none. Multiple sports just any type of
activity. At that point it would be up to the Commission or the Manager to help govern how we are
going to use it and how it is going to be utilized. There are all kinds of options if you have a facility like
that. It helps your pool and your indoor activities. If you want to put money into the tennis courts you
could do that.

Mayor Cury - So it increases the center of gravity over there.

Jeff - Sure it does.

Doug — I don’t mean to disagree with you, it is a wonderful idea but my only thought is Richlands is dying
and we need to think out of the box. You can ride down in Richlands, Friday/Saturday nobody, it needs
something downtown some kind of draw, the Rec is a treasure it is a draw if it is put in a nice place. If we
took that money along with some grant money and move downtown a whole new facility with a three
(3) year plan and a few grants and add 4 or5 million to it without raising taxes. We need a new Fire

37



Station, Fire and Rescue and a new Rec Center in my opinion that can be seen. That would be a perfect
place downtown if we use that money and renovate the police station and give people hope.

Jeff - As far as the location as a complex this size, we have looked at different locations there is definite
an oppourturity or thought for location. If it is ran properly and utilized properly, you can have all kinds
of sports and things there.

Doug - It is not going to draw anything downtown. You can ask half the Town they don’t know where the
Rec is. If we had that facility and new whole Rec Center with new pools everything inside of the Town
limits where people could go by and see five or six hundred people daily, the community would have
hope. Right now Richlands has no hope, if you put all the money up there where it is hidden it is not
going to help your Town. That is my opinion. We need to think out of the box for ten (10) to twelve (12)
millions dollars and that would be the start, get some grants and raising no taxes we could build a
whole new downtown and change Richlands and give people hope. In the last 20 years we have done
nothing, nothing at all. If we thought out of the box and come up with a plan, and they saw some
activity and the Rec was moved down here Mary Ann it would change everything.

Jeff - Basically with the Rec is finding an area that is as massive.

Doug - We could take the police station, 75% of the people who use the Rec are Cedar Bluff, Claypool
Hill out of town people all they do is go there and go back.

Mayor Cury - | am not opposed to anything you are saying, Jeff is talking about a dream and you have a
dream and they are not necessary different dreams just when it is going to happen. Doug, | appreciate
what you are saying and | appreciate what Jeff is saying. In the interest of time, | do respect what you
are saying. Thank you, Jeff.

Jeff - | would like a consensus or something so | could get someone to come and look at it get some
pictures and gets some drawings and maybe they can get some site plans too.

Mayor Cury - | have not seen the plans | know something about the project you talked to me years ago
about this and 1 think it would be helpful Jeff, here is a thought, in the upcoming work session we are
going to do if we could take time look at the plans when we have clear eyes and heads . | personally feel
like it is a good thing. Would that be a good time to put on a table so we could look at them? Is that OK?

Jeff — OK

Mayor Cury - Does anyone else have thoughts | don’t think we need to let it go by the wayside but we
will find a time and place so we can look at that. Jeff you OK with that?

Jeff —Yes

38



John - We do have projects that we want to finish up; | don’t want to run out of money and have to raise
taxes.

Doug ~ Why can’t we do like Tazewell have the community take part and have a community committee
to take part with Council and decide how this money is spent. They have formed a committee.

John - I think politically it would backfire; we are doing a WWTP and if it comes in over budget, my
recommendation would be to use some of these funds to pay for that so we don’t have to raise utility
rates. The public is going to want to do pools and splash pads all the fun stuff which | can’t blame them.
Could put us in a tough spot where we spent all this money and we still have this price overrun and we
have no money to pay and everyone is going to get mad at me. |think we come back and have a
discussion and then we can agree.

Doug - Should they have a decision in it, in how the money is spent?
John - | will get you some ideas to present to you.

Doug — | don’t see how Tazewell, Tazewell is doing some stuff, we are doing nothing. We don’t know and
we can’t make all the decisions for the community. Why can’t we have participation from people in the

community and they have a voice. They have to pay all these rate increases why can’t you give them a
voice.

Mayor Cury — Doug, we are an indirect democracy people elect representatives to do for them and make
decisions for them that is why you are here. You are their voice, Jeff, Mary Ann, Mike, Richard and
myself we are all the voice for the people and there are sometimes referendums on different things .
The ARPA money has certain ways that it can be used and certain ways it can’t be used | don’t know
what those are Doug but | would have to defer John, but | suggest that the people who support your
ideas you are representing their voice. | am listening carefully | am not dismissing it at all please don’t
feel that way. Some of your ideas are good but | am trying to think of this money and how it can be
used. My conservative side and | have a real spend side, my conservative side right now is if we can
have the extra to do some of the things that Jeff and others want to do it is great. John what | am
hearing you say and correct me if | am wrong you want some of that money that can be used for our
WWTP for cost overruns so we don’t have to come back to the Board and say sorry we didn’t save our
money for a rainy day we are going have to raise your taxes. Is that what you are saying?

John - Taxes and Utilities

Mayor Cury — You are trying to limit taxation, | think that would be the best way to go right now,
keeping taxes low.

Mike — We are in the middle of an incredibly large WWTP upgrade, a few months ago Thompson and
Litton came to us and said listen because of COVID this is going to be 30% more than what it was going

39



to be, we have raised our rates to a certain point to accommodate these upgrades but what we have not
done anything with the 30%. What that means is the way it looks right now we are going to have to find
30% more for this project to pay for it. We don’t have that money so where is that money coming from;
it comes from raising rates again. Doug | know you don’t want to raise rates again. We will have to tell
them we are raising your rates again 1 don’t want to have that conversation. That is what John is trying
to say that money can go for those upgrades and costs that we were not expecting.

John - We don’t know how much it is going to be. People don’t like to pay taxes but if they see what
they are getting they would be more willing to support the project if they know what it is. Until we get
the quotes in we are not going to know.

Richard - How much did we get?

John - §5.2 million - we have received about $2.7.

Richard — $5.2 million or 5.4 million total

John — Somewhere in there

Richard - | don’t see any reason why we could not do both.

John - | give you a list of projects we have been doing downtown, the revitalization that we plan on
doing will cost us about a half million, the drainage at the Pizza Hut, finishing the green space. | am not
saying we can’t do it | just want to make sure everyone is aware of what we are doing.

Mayor Cury - “Council Member Reports” — Doug Ratliff

Doug — My thinking on this situation without input from the community we have done nothing in the
last twenty years we have ran the electric system and the highest in the community. | look at track
records we don’t have a very good track record of running things. We have taken a system that could
have been great for the citizens and now it is an anchor because their electric rates are 30% higher than
the surrounding communities. | don’t have much faith without some input from other people from the
community; the past is in the future that is my thinking.

Doug — The guy that is wanting to renovate the Hill Top Motel, he is saying and | don’t know what the
conversations were, maybe two (2) years ago the Town agreed that they would give him a water system
for like $10,000/$12,000 dollars, that is his side not sure what the Town’s is. They raised it to $20,000
and he doesn’t want to put the money in to renovate now because he said the Town reneged on their
deal, do you know anything about that?

John —We don't have a line close to him, we could put a line down thru his property | think the
discussion years ago, the line would come right by his property which the cost would be much smaller

40



than if we have to run a line thru someone else’s property. It was based on anticipating on how he
could tap on the line, we looked at it, the cost to me based on what we would invest, until | see him
invest thousands of dollars into that property | don’t feel comfortable writing off $18,000 to $20,000 for
the water taps. At this point | have not seen him put in the investment to bring to Council and have that
discussion on us doing that work.

Doug — Maybe you can have more discussions with him.

John - Wait and see

Doug - He says he has the money, if he could renovate that it would be great for the community.

John - | can get the information and bring back to the next Council meeting.

Doug - Let’s talk with him and compromise someway.

Mike - Maybe a contract of some sort.

John - | know it was going to be around $20,000 for the taps and the meters. He wants six inch lines so
that is more than we do. He wants to do a laundromat and a hotel. It is complicated; | will get some

more information and report back to everyone.

Mike - We can see what he does and it gets to the point where he has invested enough money into it we
could make a deal or something.

John - I think he wants to do enough to flip it. Someone else come in there and finish it, | will see what
our options are.

Doug — Mike had a good idea once he puts so much in it make a deal with him then. Make sure it is
enough to compensate the Town.

Mary Ann - Maybe ask Tim Taylor what his conversations were, that what | was told.
John - I will follow up.

Doug - | do want to say something, | live in Richlands, | spend the amount of time in Richlands, you talk
about jobs, and | provide more jobs directly and indirectly than anyone in Town. | pay more taxes or as
much taxes as anyone in Town. [ not only live here | have a stake in Richlands, | intend to stay here. |
think the community would respect us a lot more instead of attacking Council members if we came
together and work together and try to solve all the problems that the community has. The only thing
they hear is how the Council is fighting and bickering, they don’t need to hear that. They need to see a
Council that can work together, solve problems and stop trying to destroy each other.

41



Mayor Cury — “Council Member Reports” — Mary Ann Strong

Mary Ann — To start with | know everyone has heard the sad news, Richard Smith our Planning
Commission Chairman and has been for a number of years has lost his brother Shannon to Covid, |
would ask that everyone keep Richard’s family in your prayers . Shannon’s daughter is still in the
hospital with Covid; please remember the Smith family during this loss. As far as Recreation, Monday
night we had Rec Commission meeting, we have talked many times about Jeff’s soccer project and |
know Rec Commission is very supportive of that. Finding the property like Jeff said for a field that size is
the problem. Rec Commission will meet Monday at 6:00pm upstairs at the Rec Park. The pool was
closed on September 4, a very successful pool season. There were lots of kids at the pool, and pool
parties almost every single night, sometimes they were overbooked. Clinch River Soccer Association
that is next and super exciting, | really have to recognize Jeff putting 20 plus years, would not be without
leff, he puts his whole heart/soul and time into it. They have 150 kids at this point registered; they start
on September 20 thru October 14. If you want to see fun and crowded situation go down there on
Tuesday or Thursday.

Jeff- Games are Monday, Tuesday and Thursday.

Mary Ann — Thank you Jeff. Jessica wanted me to mention on October 6 at 6:30 there is a free Women’s
Self Defense Class at the Rec Park. You may have seen on Facebook where the Church of Latter- Day
Saints was in our area on Saturday, they did a lot of work at Critterville, Teen Center and other areas,
totally volunteers. That was much appreciated.

Mary Ann - | felt out of respect to Blake Ray maybe now is the appropriate time to have some
discussion about his recommendation or opinion of asking our Town Attorney to have a possible
investigation of two {2) Councilmembers residency. | am bringing to the floor for discussion.

Doug - For the past two (2) or three (3) years that is all the Council has brought up, certain members. |
have been investigated by the Attorney General, District Attorney /Commonwealth Attorney. They are
the ones who investigate. Our Town Attorney works for the Council he can’t investigate one of the
Council members that is not his job. You talk about running up a bill, if he was to follow me around 365
days a year that is going to run a bill up. It is ludicrous, if you want me investigated do what you have
done for the last two (2) years, go to the Commonwealth Attorney, Attorney General and go to the State v
Police that is their job. It is not the job of the Town Attorney. Like | said before we are the laughing
stock of Southwest Virginia because of this crap. Let it die and work on the problems that the
community needs not on destroying each other because of some vendetta.

Mary Ann - Again | respect Mr. Ray and | would like to say | have not went to any of these individuals or
organizations not me personally | have not done any of that. We are a laughing stock it is very
embarrassing we are extremely divided. It is embarrassing when you run into people and they say you
have Council tonight, people tuning in to You Tube to watch a fight. It is not something that | enjoy and

42



want to be part of any longer. We cannot accomplish anything, you say for 20 years we have done
nothing how many years have you been on the Council?

Doug - About 20 years, and | have fought the whole 20 years to try and get something done.

Mike - Doug do you ever feel like, you talk about division and not working together. This is a serious
question do you ever feel like maybe you are part of that problem?

Doug - The only thing | do is push issues, 1 try to push the issues that help the community. | do not
attack anyone in here and | don’t try to throw anyone off of Council. Alll do is work on issues. | don’t
challenge anyone all | try to do is work for citizens what | was voted for.

Mavyor Cury — “Council Member Reports” — Mike Street

Mike — Point Broadband we still have the mapping called KMZ and they are continuing to look at that
and there is certain ways you have to look at Point Broadband wants to connect to the poles that will
take quite some time but continue to work thru that process. It is still very premature that is something
that is going to take some time in order to figure that out. The electrical team is short staffed so really
need to dig deep and get a proper estimate, it is going to take a lot of time it is something we are
currently pursuing. The Kids Day Bash Weekend was incredible we were so humbled by the support
from the community that was such a success. It was an incredible thing to do, we had so many kids that
came out and was a part of that, we had so many volunteers, it was such a great thing for the
community, getting all the emergency services involved, the support financially was incredible. We had
over 40 different people donating with different types of things financially, food, water and other things
such as time and labor. It was just incredible we were able to raise over $17,000 in just over 45 days.
We are speechless we were able to provide that, that is just a testament to our community, how great
we are and how well we come together for the children of the community. We gave away 1300 of the
backpacks, we have 200 left with school supplies. Will be given out later in the year or we find any child
thatis in need. Atlot of the teachers voiced opinions that the beginning of the year they are pretty set,
the second part of the year will see if the kids need any extra supplies. We can’t believe we were able
to do that much for the community. We had approximately $3000 left, | promised our donors that
money would go back into the community and would stay in the community. The goal is to go to the
four schools and find out what their needs are and provide the school with something. We will split up
evenly between the schools, and ask what we can help you with. We are excited about doing again next
year, bigger and better and stronger. Another thing we are going to do we have reached out to a donor
and their portion during our Kids Day Weekend we didn’t have inflatable screen for our movie day. The
donor has agreed to allow us to take that money buy a screen for the community and donate to
Richlands for movie nights in the summer spring whatever may be. The Police Station has two (2) poles
now with pulleys. It is good for our kids, youth and something we are passionate about. | want to thank
Council for their time money and effort as well; the majority of Council was on the list of donations. We
look forward to doing again next year.

43



Mayor Cury — “Council Member Reports” — Richard Brown

Richard — The Homecoming Parade will be September 30 at 6:00pm the normal parade route, | think
Chief Gilbert has that information. | had several complaints not just campaign signs but signage in
general on the utility poles, yard sale signs and now campaign signs. The Police Department usually
takes care of that regarding campaign signage but sometimes it puts them in a negative light as far as
having to enforce a law, | ask Mr. O’Daniel to ask the Chief to start enforcing the ordinances of no
posting of signs on Town property. We do have an ordinance about utility poles. Did Councilman
Plaster notify you he was not coming tonight?

Mayor Cury — He did, he sent me a text stating most fikely he would not be here tonight — 1 also ask if he
notified Connie because she is the Clerk and needs to be notified when you can’t be here. (Read text)

John - The ordinances for utility poles?

Richard - The signage on utility poles, affects the workers with nails.

Mayor Cury - My understanding if you cannot be here the number one person is the Clerk to note, she
keeps the records of the Council. | always like to let the Manager know but in this case he let the Mayor
and Connie know. Connie did he tell you?

Connie — Yes, he did

Richard - Councilman Plaster, | completely understand sickness, | feel like Mary Ann and Doug talking
earlier on residency, he took office in January and | don’t know how many meetings he has missed. | am
going to employ on the Council to strongly suggest Councilman Plaster to try to attend the meetings that
he has been elected to attend. | would be willing to make a motion to have him removed from his seat
due to lack of attendance.

Mayor Cury - Would you like the Clerk to write a letter for that?

Richard — Yes please

Mayor Cury - Would you like to put that in a motion?

Richard — | think so.

Richard — I make a motion the Clerk send Councilman Plaster a notification of the attendance of his
meetings lacking and employ to attend the meetings that he was elected to attend and also mention the

fact if this continues to be a pattern if him not attending the meetings that | will make a motion to
remove him from his seat. Mike seconded the motion.

44



Doug - | see your concern, would it be better if we just have a consensus that he attend the meetings
from all the Council and not make it a motion, | hate threating people.

Richard - | agree with you.

Doug —1am on your side.

Richard — | appreciate that.

Doug - | would feel much better if all the Council had a consensus that Connie write a letter and employ
him that he needs to attend meetings. | feel better about that, putting you on the spot too. If the

whole Council joined together.

Richard - One thing | can say about you even regardless of your residency you do attend meetings,
Councilman Plaster does not.

Doug — | agree

Doug - I think it would be better for consensus instead of one Councilmember.
Richard - | am fine with that. | will withdraw my motion.

Mike - | withdraw my second.

Mayor Cury - Richard is making a suggestion of a consensus that the Clerk write a letter encouraging
Logan to try to attend is there a consensus to that effect?

Jeff - Try or to attend.
Mike - | don’t think he is letting us down he was voted to that position.

Mayor Cury - The consensus is Connie to write a letter to Logan that Council would appreciate his
constant presence. |think it is a very difficult situation. | really can’t speak for Logan. | think what he
told me he lives here but right now he is taking some kind of course somewhere in North Carolina
maybe to be able to have a better job and when he has reached all the certifications he can resume his
full time residency here, that is what | understand. 1absolutely not in position or qualified to speak for
someone else.

Doug - ...

Mayor Cury —That’'s what he told me and | ask him why are you missing he said he was trying to get
education and certification.

45



Doug - It is insurance and security.

Mayor Cury - | can’t answer any more than that anyway we have consensus to write a letter to Logan -
Doug, Jeff, Richard, Mike, Mary Ann — Yes

Mayor Cury — “Mayor’s Comments” — Mayor Rod Cury

Mayor Cury —John, can you personally call Joel McClanahan, you have talked to him before, he called
me this week with another concern, sometimes everybody we talk to, we can’t answer everything and
we can’t fix every ditch or every sunken hole in the yard it is not possible but this time he has a concern
that really does merit your help. 1 don’t want to say it openly, OK. If you don’t have his number I've got
it.

Mayor Cury - | have many people contact me for different things, one | had most recently, once the
agenda was published | had numerous comments please do not do away with You Tube. [ expressed my
concerns earlier in the meeting and | echo from constituents.
Mayor Cury - Executive Closed Session Pursuant to VA Code Section

(a) 2.2-3711 (A) {29) Contract Negotiations (DMV Select & Jonah Project)

(b) 2.2-3711 (A) (7) Potential Ligation
Mayor Cury - Do | hear a motion to enter into Executive Closed Session?
leff- 1 make the motion to go into Executive Closed Session, Mike seconded the motion.
Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Roll Call — Doug, Yes- Jeff -Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann
~Yes Motion carries —5/0.

Mayor Cury - We will go into Executive Closed Session.

Mayor Cury - We are now back in session and ask for a motion to certified that nothing was discussed
but what was stated which is 2.2-3711(A){29) and 2.23711 (A)}(7).

Jeff - | make the motion, Mike seconded the motion
Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion

say yes. All those that oppose say no. Doug, Yes- Jeff- Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann — Yes
Motion carries — 5/0.

46



Mayor Cury - Before we adjourn we need to find a time for a work session to discuss primarily the
Charter Changes.

John - You have the Charter, the Electric and the ARPA .

Mayor Cury - It will be these specific topics. We have to advertise it.
John - It won’t be in the newspaper until September 22.

Mayor Cury - September 27 @ 5:30pm

Bob - Do you need legal representation that night?

Mayor Cury — You are always invited. From my opinion you would not be required to come. We won’t
be voting on anything. We will be trying the words over to you for grammar corrections.

Mike - Can you let Logan know?

Mayor Cury - | will ask Connie to let him know, that is the Clerk’s job.

Jeff - | make the motion to adjourn, Doug seconded the motion.

Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no. Doug -Yes- Jeff- Yes, Richard-Yes, Mike — Yes, Mary Ann — Yes

Motion carries — 5/0.

Adjourn

Rodney D. Cury, Mayor

Connie Allen, Town Clerk

47






The Richlands Town Council held a “Workshop” in the Richlands Council Chambers on September 27,
2021 at 5:30 pm, with the following present:

Mayor: Rodney D. Cury

Town Manager: John O'Daniel

Town Clerk: Connie Allen

Council Members: Mary Ann Strong, Jeff Hurst, Mike Street, Doug Ratliff

Richard Brown

Council Member Absent: Logan Plaster
Town Attorney : No Attorney Present

Mayor Cury opened the meeting.

John - Opened the meeting and introduced the guest from GDS Associates, Inc. and Blue Ridge Power.

Garrett Cole/Jacob Thomas- GDS Associates — Presentation of Power Point — Discussed and Answered
questions along with Alice Wolf from Blue Ridge Power. (Power Point attached)

Battery Storage — Lower cost

Solar- Recommended being last option.

PCA — Need to consider.

Consider Battery Storage RFP — Four {4) of the Blue Ridge members are planning to release
an RFP for battery storage. Would like to have the system online by June 1, 2023.

Would like to know by November if Council wants to consider joining the RFP.

Battery Storage and PCA - Put on the Council agenda to consider in October

Mayor Cury - Charter Change Discussion

Change #1 — Agreed on wording of term limits.

Change #2 — Difference of Opinion — discuss later

Change #3 —3.8(b) — Leave “AS IS” — Strike Change

Change #3 —3.8(c) - Discuss later

Change #4 - Town Manager needs to live in Town, possible time-frame to move to Town.
No cost to make Charter changes.

Research wording from other Town Charters.

John - Discussed ARPA Funds — Presented attached list and discussed.

Downtown Revitalization Grant - $500,000

WTP and WWTP Upgrades - $4,164,807

Drainage issue at Pizza Hut - $150,000

Small Business Revolving Loan Fund (IDA) - $25,000
PD Body Worn Cameras - $50,000



e Green Space Phase Il - $25,000

¢ Drive-Thru - $20,000 (Hope to be $0)

® RecPark Improvements - $400,000

¢ Mike asked to add Fire Department — Communication 911

* Doug recommended letting citizens have a say and form a committee.
¢  Public Hearing — Agreed by Council

Richard - | make a motion to adjourn the workshop, Mike seconded the motion.
Mayor Cury- We have a motion and a second, any further discussion? All those in favor of the motion
say yes. All those that oppose say no, Mike, Yes, Doug-Yes, Mary Ann-Yes, Richard — Yes, Jeff — Yes

Motion carries — 5/0.

Workshop Adjourned

Rodney D. Cury, Mayor

Connie Allen, Town Clerk



PROJECT:

OWNER:

ENGINEER:

DATE:

Scope of Work:

Thompson & Litton, Inc. (T&L) will assist the Town with preparation of a preliminary sketch for a drive-
thru canopy, prepare construction documents for a drive-up pneumatic tube system with video monitors
inside and out and cantilevered canopy, and prepare a Request for Proposal for soliciting bids.
Bidding/Advertising and Construction Contract Administration will be provided by the Town of Richlands.

TIME FRAME:

T&L will complete the above referenced scope of work within 30 days upon Town'’s issuance of notice to

proceed.

COMPENSATION:

T&L proposes to complete the aforementioned scope of work for an estimated not-to-exceed fee amount

of $7,000.

T&L 329 Main Street  P.O. Box 179 Tazewell, Virginia 24651  tel: 276.988.7921 fax: 276.988.7924 www.T-L.com

THOMPSON
ELITTON &4

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING #11 BETWEEN

TOWN OF RICHLANDS (OWNER)
AND THOMPSON & LITTON, INC. (ENGINEER)

Richlands Town Hall Drive-up Station
T&L Project #16028
{(T&L Retainer #714471-00)

Town of Richlands
200 Washington Square
Richlands, Virginia 24641

Thompson & Litton, Inc.
P. 0. Box 1307
Wise, Virginia 24293

September 15, 2021



Town of Richlands

Memorandum of Understanding #11
T&L Project No. 16028

September 15, 2021

Page 2

STANDARD AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS:

The Standard and Special Provisions as outlined in our February 18, 2019 Retainer Agreement will remain
in effect under this proposal.

TOWN OF RICHLANDS, VIRGINIA THOMPSON & LITTON, INC.
John O’Daniel (% Greé{)ry H. %Jr'st, PE
Town Manager President
Title Title

September 15, 2021
Date Date

T&L www.T-L.com



Staff Estimate

Recommended

1 [Downtown Revitalization Grant $500,000 $500,000]Based on participation, but we hope this is closer to $400,000
2 fwTP and WWTP Upgrades (Above Budget) $4,164,807 $4,164,807
3 |Drainage issue at Pizza Hut $150,000 $150,000
4 ISmall Business Revolving Loan Fund (IDA) $25,000 $25,000
5 JPD Body Worn Cameras $50,000 $50,000
6 |Green Space Phase #2 $75,000 $25,000{$50,000 grant with up to $25,000 in town cost
7 |Drive-thru (Above Budget) $20,000 $20,000]Hope this is $0, but wanted to hi-light it.
8 |Rec Park Improvements $1,200,000 $400,000]5500k+ Grant, $400k ARPA Funds, 300k 10yr @2.5% Loan {$35k/ year)
Total Cost $5,334,807
Contingency (10%) $533,481
Total $5,868,288
ARPA Funds $5,430,362
Difference -$437,926
Difference w/o Contingency $95,555







CURRENT PUBLIC COMMENT RULES
A RESOLUTION CONCERNING PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA AND NON-AGENDA ITEMS AT TOWN
COUNCIL MEETINGS
WHEREAS, the business of the Town of Richlands is conducted at the Richlands Town Council meeting;
and,
WHEREAS, the Town Council values the opinions of its citizens and welcomes public comment on
agenda and non-agenda items of Town interest; and,
WHEREAS, the Town Council wishes to facilitate the order of reception and dissemination of
information; and,
WHEREAS, the Town Council determines that this can best be accomplished in an environment where
the rules of the conduct of meetings are clearly established;
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY the Town Council of the Town of Richlands, that the following

rules and procedures are hereby established:

Section 1. Agenda ltems

a) The Town Council shall maintain an agenda which shall list items to be discussed at Town Council
meetings. Speakers who have requested inclusion on the Town Council Meeting Agenda are limited to a
maximum of five (5) minutes per person unless 1). Prior arrangements have been made with the mayor,
or 2). The Town Council, by motion at the beginning of the meeting, increases or reduces the time limit.
No speaker shall be permitted to cede his five (5)-minute allotment to another speaker. Each speaker shall
speak from the podium or microphone and shall state his or her name and address for the record.

b) Citizens are invited to suggest topics of Town interest to be placed on the Town Council agenda. A citizen
who wishes to place a topic on the agenda shall notify the Town Clerk or their designee two weeks in
advance of the Town Council meeting at which the proposed topic is to be discussed. The citizen who
suggested that the topic be placed on the agenda shall have five (5) minutes to make his or her
presentation on the topic.

Section 2. Non-Agenda ltems

Citizens shall have the opportunity to make comment on a non-agenda item during Town Council meeting. Each
speaker who has not been previously included on the Agenda shall be limited to a maximum comment period of
three (3) minutes. No speaker shall be permitted to cede his three (3)-minute allotment to another speaker. Each
speaker shall speak from the podium or microphone and shall state his or her name and address for the record.

Section 3. Documents

Any speaker who intends to produce a report, diagram, map, photograph, compilation of data, or other document
to the Town Council at a meeting shall also provide the Town Clerk or their designee with ten (10) hard copies,



and, if possible, one (1) electronic copy of all documents at least five (5) business days prior to the Town Council
meeting so that the documents may be maintained as part of the record of the meeting.

Section 4. Decorum?

a) Comments by citizens on agenda or non-agenda items are limited to statements; speakers may not
engage the Town Council members or Town employees in a question-and-answer exchange.

b) The Town Council encourages civility in public discourse and requests that speakers refrain from language
which would incite an immediate breach of the peace; and refrain from language which would incite and
immediate breach of the peace; and refrain from undue repetition, extended discussion of irrelevancies,
use of obscenities, and personal attacks.

¢) Any person who violates these rules may be declared out of order by the Mayor. A person who persists in
violating these rules may be removed from the meeting.

A copy of this Resolution shall be posted on the Town'’s website. This Resolution shall take effect upon passage.

Mayor White asked for a Motion to adopt the Resolution. Frances Meadows made the Motion to approve the
Resolution. Larry Johnson seconded the Motion. Vote, 6/0, all in favor (with corrections). Motion carries.



RESOLUTION
R-2021-10-01

At a regularly scheduled meeting of the Council of the Town of Richlands held on
October 12, 2021, on a motion by , seconded by

, the following Resolution was adopted by a vote of _ to

WHEREAS, the Council of the Town of Richlands desires to submit an application for an
allocation of grant funds through Cumberland Plateau Company, Fiscal Year 2021, Cumberland
Plateau Regional Opportunity Program (CProp); and,

WHEREAS, the funding request is for Phase II of the Community Greenway Activity
Area in the Central Business District.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: The Town Council of Richlands
hereby supports this application for an allocation of funds through the Cumberland Plateau
Company, Cumberland Plateau Regional Opportunity Program.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Richlands Town Council hereby grants
authority for the Town Manager to execute project administration agreements for the proposed
Cumberland Plateau Company (CProp) project.

ADOPTED this 12th day of October 2021.

Rodney D. Cury, Mayor

Connie Allen, Town Clerk






CUMBERLAND PLATEAU
COMPANY

Cumberland Plateau Regional
Opportunity Program (CProp)

GRANT APPLICATION
2021 CYCLE

Cumberiand Plateau

BRWADBAND



PROGRAM DESIGN
CUMBERLAND PLATEAU REGIONAL OPPORTUNITY PROGRAM (CProp)

2021 CYCLE
PURPOSE

The Cumberland Plateau Regional Opportunity Program (CProp) is established to
reinvest program income revenues from the CPC Broadband project in economic development
efforts in the four counties and twelve towns of the Cumberland Plateau Planning District
(CPPDC). These program income revenues are generated from the regional broadband
infrastructure system that was funded by the U.S. Economic Development Administration, the
Virginia Tobacco Commission, U.S. National Telecommunications and Information
Administration and the Virginia Coalfield Economic Development Authority and is operated and
maintained by the Cumberland Plateau Company in partnership with the Sunset Group,
specifically Point Broadband.

ELIGIBLE APPLICANTS AND ACTIVITIES

The only eligible applicants for CProp funds are the local governing bodies of the
Cumberland Plateau Planning District Commission — Buchanan, Dickenson, Russell and
Tazewell Counties and the Towns of Grundy, Clinchco, Clintwood, Haysi, Cleveland, Honaker,
Lebanon, Bluefield, Cedar Bluff, Pocahontas, Richlands and Tazewell.

The CProp is meant to be a flexible grant source for these local governments to support
various public economic and community development activities that help to diversify the District
economy. Preference will be given to activities that are linked to the Cumberland Plateau
Planning District Commission’s Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (latest update)
and to other regional, state and federal economic development plans, initiatives and programs.
Eligible activities include, but are not limited to, the following:

e Industrial Site/Park Development Projects in support of manufacturing jobs,
including, but not limited to, infrastructure activities such as water, sewer,
telecommunications, electricity, natural gas, access roads, rails sidings, etc.

o Broadband and Wireless Infrastructure Expansion and Upgrade projects that
support business development and expansion as well as deployment in residential
communities.

e Downtown Revitalization Projects, including, but not limited to, activities such as
streetscapes, signage, building renovations, water and sewer and other public
infrastructure improvements, etc. that support or enhance small business



development. CProp funds cannot be used for renovations to public buildings
and facilities that do not have an economic development impact.

e Asset-based Development Projects, such as trails, trailheads, welcome centers,
museums, and other tourism-related activities that support new business
development related to the regional cultural heritage and outdoor recreation
initiatives such as Southwest Virginia Outdoors, The Crooked Road, ‘Round the
Mountain, the Clinch River Valley Initiative and the Spearhead Trails.

e Other activities that support economic diversification in the region as determined
by the Cumberland Plateau Company Board and in keeping with the District
CEDS and the guidelines of the U.S. Economic Development Administration.

APPLICATION PROCESS

Applications for CProp funds in 2021 will be open on the following dates: June 1 and
September 7 with deadlines for submission on June 30 and October 15, respectively. Upon
receipt of applications, the Cumberland Plateau Company Executive Board (Board) will review
and make awards as appropriate within the CProp guidelines as approved by EDA at the regular
Executive Board Meeting the following month. Only one (1) application from a locality can be
received in a year unless the Board directs otherwise.

APPLICATION GUIDELINES

CProp funds, as available, are to be used for economic and community development and
economic enhancement activities in the four counties of the Cumberland Plateau Planning
District. Higher priority will be given to projects that support job creation. However, projects
that have lower job creation numbers but enhance overall economic development efforts, such as
asset-based or downtown projects, will be eligible for funding.

A maximum of $100,000 for counties and $50,000 for towns will be available for any
one project in any given year, unless the Board directs otherwise. It is anticipated that larger
funding awards may be made for projects with large numbers of jobs created.



SECTION 1: APPLICANT INFORMATION

Local Government: Town of Richlands Virginia

Address: 200 Washington Square

City: Richlands State: Virginia ZIP: 24641
Contact Person: John O’Daniel

Telephone: (276) 964-2549 Fax: (276) 963-2889

E-mail: jodaniel@richlands-va.gov Website: www.town.richlands.va.us

Federal Tax ID Number: 54-6001555

DUNS Number (if available): N/A

Brief Description of Project: We would like to add exciting additions to the greenway space.
These additions will enhance the greenway space and will encourage visitors to stay longer, attend
more events, and visit all our outdoor recreation sites.

Estimated Date of Project Completion: 10/13/2022
(Project Completion should occur within 2 years of grant award.)

Physical address of project location: 1413 Front Street, Richlands, VA

SECTION 2: PROGRAM SPECIFIC INFORMATION

If applicable, which Goal in the most recent Cumberland Plateau Planning District
Commission Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Update does this project

address? (CEDS Update can be found at this link: (www.cppdc.org/Reports). #2, #9, #10

If this project is not aligned with the CEDS, does it address another local, regional, state or
federal economic development plan, initiative or program? [J Yes [ No If “Yes”, please

identify and provide supporting information: N/A

If no, how does the project support job creation and economic diversification in the region?

N/A



SECTION 3: PROJECT INFORMATION

Please describe the project, including as applicable, a discussion of the project history,
proposed use of funds, other funding sources, benefits to the community, projected private
investment levels, projected local tax revenues and type and number of jobs
created/retained.

We are proposing to add more exciting additions to our greenway stage. Our goals are to increase our
interaction with local business and the community to enhance overall economic development efforts.
The stage at the greenway space is currently under construction and is expected to be completed by the
end of November. Once construction of the stage is complete, we would like to add some additions to
the stage to make it more efficient for the community which would include a projector, projection
screen, sound system, and lights. To inform the community of events we would like to add a marquee
LED sign at the greenway space. These additions would enhance the greenway space and help open
more opportunity for fun activities such as music concerts, dance recitals, movie nights, local events,
and Town dedications. The greenway space will be the heart of Richlands, a gathering place to create a
stronger sense of community and a great way to bring in more tourism. It will encourage visitors to stay
longer, attend more events, and visit all our outdoor recreation sites. Drawing in citizens and visitors
increase revenue used to promote and grow our community.

The greenway space and stage are located right across the street from the newly renovated Community
Development Center and the Tazewell County Library — Richlands Branch. The stage and the Community
Development Center will create a one-stop location for our visitors, businesses, and citizens. It will give
businesses and citizens the opportunity to create stronger communication, increase coordination of
events and unite the community. The entire location will be used to welcome visitors and the
community to our hometown. Multiple festivals and events will be held at the greenway. The greenway
will be the central area where the community and tourist can visit, relax, read, and take a picture with
the LOVEwork sign.

PROPOSED USE OF FUNDS:

¢ Install lights, power box, wire, and fiber

¢ Install a projector screen

e Install a projector

¢ Install a sound system

¢ Purchase turf and concrete to cover the asphalt in the greenway
¢ Add a LED marquee sign



BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY:

® One stop location for the community, business owners and tourist.

e Permanent Spots for Mobile Food Vendors — Increases revenue

s Central area for music concerts, dance recitals, movie nights, local events, and Town
dedications.

* Central area where the community and tourist can visit, relax, read, take a picture with
LOVEwork sign, and enjoy events.

e  Promote Local Tourism and bring people to our Town.

e Increase tax revenue for the Town during events and outdoor recreation.

¢ Increase our ability to share and promote opportunities.

® Increase interaction with local businesses.

¢ Introduce visitors to the community and outdoor recreation assets of Tazewell County.

e High—speed internet access.

e Informational Center

e Town of Richlands Library in walking distance.



SECTION 4: FUNDING REQUEST INFORMATION

Estimated Total Project Cost: $ 71,439.46

CProp Funds Requested: $_50,000.00

Please list the estimated project costs and funding sources below.

Cost Category Applicant CProp Source: Source: Source: Total
Hometown Flow
Grant
Land Acquistion $ $ 8 $ $ $
Site $14,263.97 | $11,436.03 $ 8 $ $
Development
Building Cost $ $ $ $ 3 $
Utilities/Roads $ $ 2,500.00 $ $ $ $
Engineering/Arch. | § 8 $ $ $ 3
Legal/closing fees | § $ $ $ 8 8
Other: Additions $6,175.49 $9,883.42 $ 1,000.00 $ $ b
Other: 3 $ 26,180.55 $ 8 $ $
Turf/Concrete
Total $ 20,439.46 $ 50,000.00 $ 1,000.00 $ 3 $71,439.46

Funding status: (Provide status of all funding sources listed above and attach commitment
letters as appropriate.) We have applied for the Hometown Flow Grant through the Clinch
River Valley Initiative. Since we have not received a commitment letter, I have attached the
information on the Hometown Flow Grant. We will receive notification when it’s approved, and
a check for $1,000 will soon follow in the mail.

Project Engineer/Architect: George West

Has a copy of a project activities map or plgt of the project site and proposed

improvements been attached to this application? ¥Yes [No [J Not applicable to project.
If “No”, please explain why not:

Has a copy of a resolution from t? appropriate county/town supporting the project been
attached to this application? Yes 0 No If “No”, please explain why not:

SECTION 5: EMPLOYMENT IMPACT

Current Number of Employees at Project Location; if applicable:

N/A__ Full-Time __N/A__Part-Time Average Full-Time Wage: N/A



Projected Number of Employees at Project Location:

Within 1 Year: Full-Time Part-Time
Average Full-Time Wage: $

Within 2 Years: Full-Time Part-Time
Average Full-Time Wage: §

Within 3 Years: Full-Time Part-Time
Average Full-Time Wage: $

Is it expected that employment at the project location will be dr:yn from residents of two
or more counties within the Cumberland Plateau? [0 Yes [0No ™ Not applicable to project.

SECTION 6: SIGNATURE PAGE

By signing below, the Applicant hereby acknowledges and agrees to the following:

e  Eligibility for financial assistance from CPC is determined by the information presented in this application
and in the required attachments. Any changes in the proposed project from the facts presented herein could
disqualify the project. Therefore, CPC immediately must be advised in writing of any material changes in
the information contained in this application.

e The Applicant understands that neither the submission of this application, nor any other communications
(oral or written), creates any legally binding obligations upon CPC. There is no guarantee of approval.

e CPC may require supplemental information from time to time. Any such submitted supplemental
information shall become a part of this application.

e This application shall form a part of any grant agreement between the parties.

e Only complete signed applications with an executed resolution from the applicant locality will be
considered.

The undersigned hereby certifies that all information contained above and all information
contained in attachments which make up this application are true and correct to the best of
his/her knowledge and belief, and are submitted for the purpose of obtaining grant
assistance from the Cumberland Plateau Company’s CProp fund.

Applicant Name: Town of Richlands Virginia

By: (SEAL)
Print Name: John O’Daniel

Title: Town Manager

Date: October 13, 2021




HOMETOWN FLOW GRANTS

Flow. You know what it feels like. It's when you're working the plan and things are coming
together. Team members know and understand each other. New partners offer support.
Individual businesses and residents align their efforts with those of the community. You're
getting things done together, and people are taking notice. That's flow.

But it doesn't happen all at once. You've got to do a little priming to get to that flow, and CRVTI's
Hometowns of the Clinch want to help.

The Clinch River Valley Initiative (CRVI) is offering communities an opportunity to apply for
$1,000 Hometown Flow Grants.

Grants can be used for
e Capacity building efforts
e Demonstration projects
e Community revitalization events
e Qutreach strategies and more.

These grants, however, cannot be used for marketing.
Not sure what this might look like for your community?

LET’S THINKR ABOUT IT

1. Sit down with your team.

2. Consider your goals for your community revitalization effort. List them. Is the list
complete? Add toit.

3. Talk about these goals with your team. Keep adding if you come up with other goals.
Identify which four or five of these are a priority right now.

4. Once you've agreed on a list of goals, start to brainstorm projects that can advance you
toward those goals.

5. Review each idea on the brainstorm list against your goals...especially your priority goals.
Which idea is emerging as the most important flow generator right now?



NOTE: If you've done a RALLY project, this is the same process. Conversation in step two
and three is great! Brainstorming is terrific in step four! With a good process in those
steps, the project prioritization in step five should be much easier.

HOW YOUR COMMUNITY CAN APPLY

1

Be designated, or in the process of designation or redesignation as a Hometown of the
Clinch.

Send at least one representative to the Hometowns Homecoming on September 21 in St.
Paul.

Decide as a team what project you want to do. See above.

Tell us what you'll use the money for on our online application form.

Submit the application no later than Thursday, October 21, 2021. That's one month after
the Hometowns Homecoming.

You will get a notification when it's approved, and a check will soon follow in the mail.

A final report will be due by May 31, 2021

FLOW GRANTS are;

e Available to the designated Hometowns of the Clinch communities: Tazewell,
Cedar Bluff, Richlands, Honaker, Cleveland, Lebanon, Dante, St. Paul, and
Dungannon.

e Available to communities working toward Hometowns of the Clinch designation:
Cedar Bluff, Honaker, and Lebanon.

e Work must be completed by May 1, 2021

e $1,000 investments in your work that do not require a match. However, you are
Welcome to apply the grant toward a larger project funded with other sources.

e Funded through a grant from the Virginia Tourism Corporation (VTC)

QUESTIONS: Contact KRathy Stewart

stpaulmainstreet@gmail.com
276-395-0685

Michelle Workman
mworkman@virginia.org
276-722-0238




1. Describe your project

2. What challenges or barriers will the grant help you address?

3. What are your project goals?

4. If the project is successful, what will it have accomplished? Use numbers to show your
targets. For instance, “we will gain 4 new volunteers.”



5. List your team members and their roles. Include a team leader, a primary point of contact
' and a backup contact.

6. Budget: What's the total project budget?

7. Which piece of the total budget will the FLOW grant pay for? (it's fine if it's the entire
budget.)

8. What additional funding source do you have? (optional)



CONTACT NAME

ORGANIZATION

ADDRESS

PHONE

EMAIL

BACRUP CONTACT NAME

PHONE

EMAIL






Town of Richlands
PAID CHECKS REPORT
10/12/2021
Check#f [Paid To . Amount Description
10704} ADVANCE AUTO PARTS $1,090.04 jALL DEPTS-BATTERIES, PARTS, BULBS, FUEL STABILIZER
10705 |AETNA $865.72 |AETNA-WILBUR MABE/66148978-REFUND-OVER PAYMENT
10706 |ALLIED 100, LLC $45.85 [4FORLIFE FUNDS-HEARTSAVER BLOODBORNE PATHOGENS INSTR PXG
10707 JAMAZON WEB SERVICES, INC. $313.39 |AMAZON WEB SVCS-[T-SEPT 2021 [CLOUD SVC l
10708 AMERICAN CARPET CARE, INC, $21,240.00 |ST-MOWING/WEED EAT/BRUSH CUT/TRASH P'UP
10703 ANCHORAGE PHOTO & VIDEO RADIO SHACK $180.53 |RADIO SHACK-EL-CHAIN SAW SUPPLIES PO EL93595
10710 ANTHEM BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD $478.00 |ANTHEM-REFUND-VANDYKE, STEPHANIE/63086646
10711 {APPALACHIAN AGENCY FOR SENIOR CITIZENS $600.00 |AASC-OCT 2021-PUBLIC TRANSIT l
10712 [APPALACHIAN AGGREGATES, LLC $2,420.73 |APP AGG-ST- CRUSHER RUN
10713 [APPLIED INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGIES-DIXIE $68.00 {WWTP-OIL DRY SMART PAD, PRESSURE GAUGES PO 14288
10714 |ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES $1,364.01 ALL DEPTS-UNIFORMS
10715 ATCO INTERNATIONAL $370.92 |ATCO-STEEL MAX 5/S COATING-ALL DEPTS PO 14464
10716 ATLANTIC MACHINERY, INC. $1,799.95 |LINES #809 FLUSHER-OUTLET/INLET TUBE WELDMENT
10717 |AUTOMATION DIRECT.COM, INC. $53,00 |WTP-FLOURIDE PRI-PUSH BUTTON FOR SCADA PO EL700439
10718{BIOLOGICAL MONITORING, INC. $1,800.00 |BIOLOGICAL MONITORING-WWTP-TOXICITY TESTING PO 81536
10719|BLUE RIDGE POWER AGENCY $3,592.85 [BRPA-AUG 2021-ENG/LGL/CONSULTING FEES ]
10720{BUSKILL SALES CO., INC, $1,775.97 {BUSKILL SALES-LINES-BACKHOE-2 TIRES, 1 TUBE, LABOR
10721 |C.W, WILLIAMS FIRE EQUIPMENT $471.93 |FIRE-#514- LIGHTS (6) 36" PVC CONE PO F2017 i
10722 [CLINCH VALLEY MEDICAL CENTER $538.00 |CVMC-PD/WTP/RESCUE PRE EMPL DRUG TESTS/PHYSICALS
10723 |CMC SUPPLY, INC, $1,869.94 [LINES {6) COMP TEE 1" ON THE RUN, 3/4" ON THE BRANCH
107241COLE ELECTRIC, INC, $2,875.00 |COLE ELECTRIC-WWTP-PUMP SHAFT-CUT SHAFT & BEZEL BOTH ENDS PO 81540
10725 [CREATIVETIME SOLUTIONS $140.00 | OCT'21 TIME & ATTEND WEB HOSTING-ALL EMPLOYEES
10726|DDP LLC $970.19 |LINES/EL TIME SHEETS, EL-PO'S, FIN OFF-WINDOW ENVELOPES PO 6159
10727 |FRAZIER TIRE AND AUTOMOTIVE $472.19 |SANT #625 1 TIRE/SANT #648-TIRE PATCH RIGHT FRONT, RR TIRE LEAKING, PATCH
10728 |FREEDOM FORD $941.63 |ST #635-WIRE ASY, RESCUE #552 TUBE
10723 |GALETON GLOVES AND SAFETY PRODUCTS $388.41 |GALETON GLOVES-ST/SANT-GLOVES, INSULATED GLOVES PO 14437 l
10730(GIBSON ENTERPRISES, INC. $2,102.48 |ALL DEPTS-MOTOR OIL, BRAKE CLEANER, FX TEFLON PENETRATING FOAM PO 14453
10731 |GRAINGER $61.67 |WWTP-LATCHING RELAY FOR SLUDGE PUMP-DIGESTOR BLDG
10732 |HUMANA $739.83 | HUMANA-REFUND-WILLIAM DILLS/67238217 i
10733 IERRY'S AUTO SERVICE $155,94 |FIRE #S00-MUFFLER/EXH PIPE INSTALLED PO F2015 l
10734 [JIM'S PRECISION BODY WORKS INC, $940.87 |RESCUE #551-REPL 2 BROKEN FR DOOR HINGES, BODY WORK, PAINT
10735 [JOSHUA OWENS $10.41 [JOSHUA OWENS-REFUND-OVER PMT PMC
10736 [KEN CONSTRUCTION CO, INC, $26,551.54 | GREENWAY-25% COMPL OF PRI-SITE WORK, EXCAVAT, FOOTERS, BLOCK-PIER INST
10737 IKIDD TIRE AUTO PARTS $430.90 |RESCUE #551-2 TIRES,M & B, TIRE DISP/FIRE-RED LIGHTS/PD INSP TIRE PRESS
10738 |LARRY HELTON $130.00 |LARRY HELTON-DTF-INSTALL RADIO IN VEHICLE PO 304358
10739 [LAWMEN SUPPLY COMPANY, INC, $1,211.74 [LAWMEN-RESCUE-SHIRTS, PANTS, PO RS3126
10740 ]LAWSON PRODUCTS, INC. $460.22 |LAWSON-ST-(10) 55 LB ASPHALT PAT TAMPER PO 5T14442
10741 [LOWE'S $2,398.56 [LOWE'S-ALL DEPTS-SUPPLIES & MATERIALS |
10742 |LUSK DISPOSAL SERVICE, INC. $853.06 [LUSK-SEPT '21-CVMC/WWTP-HAUL SERVICE |
10743 |MARK E, ISON $1,750.00 {MARK E. ISON-OCT'21-IT MONTHLY SUPPORT/TRAVEL
10744 | MIKE'S TIRE SALES-VOID- $0.00 | MIKE'S TIRE SALES-VOID |
10745 [MINEQUEST, INC, $24.42 [MINEQUEST-EXCAVTOR #672-ST/SAN/LINES PO 14445
10746 |MITCHELL1 $2,448.00 [SHOP-ST/SANT/LINES/EL/WWTP-SOFTWARE RENEWAL PO 14463
10747 |MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO. $269.49 |SHOP-BRUSHLESS HMR DRL KIT PO 14458
10748 [MSE COMPANIES $15,292.68 |MSE CO-SANT-2/4/6 CUBIC YD REAR LOAD WITH LIDS PO 14423
10749/0LD DOMINION SLUSH PUPPIE $379.00 |OLD DOMINION SLUSH PUPPIE-REC-CONCESSION PO RP2784
10750!0UTDOOR COUNTRY $172.90 JOUTDOOR COUNTRY-FIRE-#526-REPAIR RESCUE SAW PO F2018
10751 |PACE ANALYTICAL SERVICES, LLC $1,614,20 |WWTP-PERMIT RENEWAL SAMPLES WTP-MONTHLY SAMPLES
10752 |PAYNE INDUSTRIAL AND FARM EQ., INC. $1,378.82 [ST/SAN/LINES EXCAVATOR- HYD LEAK REPAIRS PO 14443 I
10753 |PLANET POWERSPORTS OF VIRGINIA $1,228.85 |PLANET POWERSPORTS-RESCUE/FIRE-6 WHEELER REPAIRS PO3136
10754 | PRIORITY MEDICAL CLAIMS, INC. $4,016.18 {PMC-SEPT 2021 RESCUE COLLECTIONS
10755 [PROFESSIONAL MAIL SERVICES, INC, $1,594.70 |PMSI-OCT'21 POSTAGE-RESIDENTIAL BILLS |
10756 [PYLE SOLUTIONS LLC $4,124.00 [PYLE SOLUTIONS-WWTP-1800 LIQ EMUL POLYMER PO 81545
10757 |QUADMED, INC, $1,779.87 {QUADMED-RESCUE-MEDICAL SUPPLIES PO RS3168 '
10758 [RAMEY RICHLANDS $154.59 |RESCUE #556-FUSE BLOWN, REP SHORT TO MAIN ALT CABLE
10759|RAVEN SUPER MARKET--VOID-- $0.00 [RAVEN SUPER MKT-VOID-- [
10760 RICHLANDS FARM BUREAU $330.79 |RLDS FARM BUREAU-ALL DEPTS-MATERIALS/SUPPLIES
10761 |RICHLANDS POOLS & SPAS $214.96 |REC-AIR BLEEDER TEE ASSEM, O RING PO 2785 |
10762 |ROBERT TATUM $114.81 |R TATUM-REFUND-QVER PMT-PMC BILL l
10763 |ROBINSON AUTO PARTS $45.54 |ROBINSON AUTO-WWTP-W/E PLUG, PIC EXTENSIONS
10764 {RUMSEY ELECTRIC CO. $5,280.00 |RUMSEY ELECTRIC-EL-16 METERS PO UT0005
. 10765]SILVER SPUR SUPPLY, INC, $18.67 [CRITTERVILLE-FENCE REPAIRS PO 14446

10766 |SPECTRUM BUSINESS $39.94 [SPECTRUM-WWTP-580 INDIAN CREEK-TELEMETRY
10767 |TEEN VENTURE $182.00 {TEEN VENTURE-SEPT '21-DONATIONS COLLECTED
10768 [THOMPSON & LITTON, INC, $44,473.63 [THOMPSON & LITTON-WTP/WWTP- UPGRADES SEPT 2021
10769 | TOWN OF RICHLANDS $7,000.00 |2021-2022-DRUG TASK FORCE CONTRIBUTION |
10770|TRI-CITIES/SW VA REGIONAL GROUP $924.60 |PAYROLL/HUMAN RES AD/PD-PATROL OFFICER AD, LIBRARY RFP
10771 (TRUCKPRO, LLC $562.24 [TRUCKPRO-SANT 630/626-GOV, 225X8.25 PO 14454
10772 {ULTRA PETROLEUM $13,194.00 {ALL DEPTS-FUEL
10773 |USABLUEBOOK $912.14 |USABLUEBOOK-WTP-CHEMICALS PO WTPO001
10774 |VERIZON $495.98 |VERIZON-REC/FIRE/PD l
10775 [VERIZON WIRELESS-VSAT $190.00 |VERIZON WIRELESS-VSAT-DTF-CASE 21-17543 PO 304947
10776 |VIRGINIA UTILITY PROTECTION SERVICE, INC. $14.70 [VUPS-SEPT '21-14 TRANSMISSIONS |
10777 |WHITT'S BACKFLOW TESTING, LLC $300.00 WWTP- 2 RPZ TESTED PO 81541, WTP 1 TESTED |
10778 WYTHEVILLE OFFICE SUPPLY, INC. $165.05 |WYTHEVILLE OFFICE-PD-{S) LTR SIZE FOLDER PO 304959
10779]ZOLL DATA SYSTEMS $298.00 |ZOLL DATA SYSTEMS-RESCUE-SEPT 2021-EMS CHARTS PO R3135
10780 |MIKE'S TIRE SALES $1,353,90 |LINES #809 4 TIRES, 2 XTR MOUNTS, 6 VALVES PO 183490
10781 |[NORTHERN SAFETY $301.76 |ST/SANT-GLOVES, COFFEE PO 14441 l
10782 |RAVEN SUPER MARKET $18.83 [WWTP-LYSOL, BOLTS PO WW81593 | ]
10783 [RICHLANDS FARM BUREAU $467.73 |ALL DEPTS-LIME, PROPANE, HARDWARE, MALE ADAPTERS

Total Checks; $195,900.48

AMP (AUG '21) $367,306.62

MORGAN STANLEY (AUG '21) $45,724.60

ANTHEM BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD (AUG '21) $101,393.00

VRS {JULY '21) $99,546.00

GRAND TOTAL $809,870.70







I

Town of Richlands |

PAID CHECKS REPORT

9/15/2021 to 10/8/2021

Checkit Paid To Check Date Amount | Description
10637 |ADRIENNE CORDLE 9/17/2021} $3,187.50 |A CORDLE- 75% YR END WORK FISCAL YR 2021 PO FIN6142
10638 |AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC. 9/17/2021}  $2,779.68 |PD/RESCUE/FIN OFFICE/WWTP -OFFICE SUPPLIES, MEDICAL SUPPLIES, ETC.
10639 | ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES 9/17/2021 $4.49 |ARAMARK-WWTP-UNIFORMS
10640 |BLANKENSHIP, DERICK STEVEN 9/17/2021 $87.82 |Utility Refund for 404507.00 92
10641 [CMC SUPPLY, INC. 9/17/2021 $348.75 |CMC SUPPLY-LINES-6 18X24 HEAVYWALL METER BOX PO 183490
10642 |CRAWFORD, DOUGLAS 5 9/17/2021 $227.80 jUtility Refund for 302938.00 96
10643 {DRUM, RICHIE D 9/17/2021 $39.62 |Utility Refund for 808242.00 94
10644 [FIRST COMMUNITY BANK 9/17/2021|  $3,712,53 |FCB-RESCUE/PD/FIN OFFICE-CLEANING SUPPLIES, OFFICE SUPPLIES
10645 |GILLESPIE, HART, ALTIZER & WHITESELL, P. 9/17/2021 $4,717.73 |GILLESPIE, HART-WOOD, ET AL VS, TOWN
10646 jHOLMES, JUSTIN TYLER 9/17/2021 $279.21 |Utility Refund for 404571.00 94
10647 [HOUCHINS, ANDY M 9/17/2021 $75.04 |Utility Refund for 707960.00 97
10648 |JERRY GILBERT 9/17/2021 $49.00 |PD-BREAKS PARK-CHIEF RETREAT-PER DIEM
10649 |JOYCE, ESTATE OF GWENDOLYN 9/17/2021 $98.09 {Utility Refund for 606034.00 98
10650 |JUSTICE, TINA MICHELLE LEE 9/17/2021 $150.98 |Utility Refund for 404224.00 94
10651 LEXISNEXIS RISK SOLUTIONS 9/17/2021 $36.20 |LEXIS-NEXIS-DTF-AUG ‘21 CONTRACT, 3 EMAIL SEARCH PO 304932
10652 | MARTIN, MARY ELLEN 9/17/2021 $3.06 |Utility Refund for 909932.00 95
10653 | MCGHEE, BRADLEY CALEB 9/17/2021 $22.45 |Utility Refund for 505078.00 93
10654 | MITCHEM JR, RICHARD LEE 9/17/2021 $116.58 |Utility Refund for 10011094,00 97
10655 | OSBORNE, MATTHEW SHANE 9/17/2021 $77.97 {Utility Refund for 12013012.00 97
10656 [OSORIO, PENNY BARRETT 9/17/2021 $51.73 |Utility Refund for 809192.00 96
10657 | PACE ANALYTICAL SERVICES, LLC 9/17/2021 $397.60 |PACE-WTP-THM/HAA SAMPLES PO WTP004
10658 | PROFESSIONAL MAIL SERVICES, INC. 9/17/2021 $344.01 |PMSI-SEPT '21-RESIDENTIAL BILLS
10659 | PROFESSIONAL MAIL SERVICES, INC. 9/17/2021 $1,210.95 |PMSI-POSTAGE-SEPT 21 RESIDENTAL
10660|RICOH USA INC. 9/17/2021 $78.96 [RICOH-PD-SQ RM-B & W, COLOR COPIES PO 304941
10661 |RYAN B LARK 9/17/2021 $14.00 |RYAN B LARK-PD-ACADEMY-LUNCH
10662 |SADLER, TERRY LYNN 9/17/2021 $98.04 |Utility Refund for 202312.00 94
10663 |SHEETS TOWING 9/17/2021 $179.99 |SHEETS TOWING-DTF-2009 CADILLAC STS, LF WINDOW GLASS PO 304939
10664 |SPECTRUM BUSINESS 9/17/2021 $175.68 [SPECTRUM-WTP-580 INDIAN CREEK ROAD
10665|SPEEDY LUBE, INC, 9/17/2021 $74.57 |SPEEDY LUBE-DTF-TRUCK-FULL SVC Ot CHANGE/LUBE, VA STATE INSPECTION
10666 | VA DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION 9/17/2021 $85.00 |VA DEPT OF TAX-LIEN
10667 |VERIZON 9/17/2021 $815.31 |VERIZON-REC/PD/FIRE
10668 |VERIZON WIRELESS 9/17/2021|  $1,224,17 |VERIZON WIRELESS-PD/DTF/FIN OFF/RESCUE/W/S/E CELL PHONES
10669 | FRANK DORTON 9/17/2021 $44.95 |ACCESS CHANNEL-CABLES PURCHASED AT CONNCERT MUSIC WORLD
10671{POSTMASTER 9/20/2021 $274.17 {POSTMASTER-SEPT 21 UT DELINQ/R/E BUDGET |
10672 |BLUE360 MEDIA LILC 9/23/2021 $380.12 |BLUE3GOMEDIA-PD {1) SET OF CODE BOOKS PO 304951
10673 |FIRE STATION OUTFITTERS, LLC 9/23/2021]  $3,510.00 {FIRE STATION OUTFITTERS-RESCUE-2 RECLINERS, SOFA, LOVESEAT PO R3081
10674 |INDIAN TOWING SERVICE 9/23/2021 $150.00 |INDIAN TOWING-RESCUE #556-FR VET DR TO RAMEY'S RICHLANDS PO RS3165
10675 |MCCLURE CONCRETE PRODUCTS, INC. 9/23/2021 $452.50 |MCCLURE-GREENSPACE-MAINT ON HANDICAP ACCESS RAMPS 2.5 YDS CONCRETE
10676 | NATIONAL BANK 9/23/2021]  $2,665.52 |NAT'L BANK-INT PMT WTP/WWTP LINE NO, 39477
10677 {RICHLANDS POOLS & SPAS 9/23/2021 $229.99 |RICHLANDS POOLS & SPAS-25# POOLIFE 3" CLEANING TABS PO 2785
10678 |RICOH USA INC, 9/23/2021 $183.06 |RICOH-PD-SQ RM/DISPATCH-COPIERS LEASE PMTS PO 304952 ‘
10679 {RICOH USA, INC. 9/23/2021|  $1,903.15 |RICOH-FIN OFFICE-COPIER-RENT, COPIES, ADDITIONAL IMAGES
10680 | T-MOBILE USA, INC. 9/23/2021 $300.00 |T-MOBILE-DTF-GPS LOCATE CASE #21-14864
10681 | TOWN OF RICHLANDS 9/23/2021 $200.00 |SAMUEL CARVER-UT BILL-202 THORN ST UNIT 9
10682 | TREASURER OF VIRGINIA-VDACS 9/23/2021 $40.00 |TREAS OF VA-FARMER'S MKT-FOOD SAFETY ANNUAL FEE 2021-2022
10683 |VERIZON 9/23/2021 $96.93 |VERIZON-2189 TN HALL/FIRE/RESCUE FAX LINE
10684 | VIRGINIA RISK SHARING ASSOCIATION 9/23/2021} $53,685.50 |VRSA-21-22 RENEWAL-SECOND INSTALLMENT
10685 |APPALACHIAN POWER 9/30/2021 $961.04 |AEP-WWTP-SIMMONS TOWN ROAD-SEW PMP LFT ST
10686 | CLERK, CIRCUIT COURT OF TAZEWELL COUN 9/30/2021 $1.00 |CLERK, CCTC-SMITH, LILLIE MARIE REL LIEN I
10687 |HARRIS 9/30/2021 $907.35 {HARRIS-REAL ESTATE BUDGET TAX BILL 5,000 PO FIN6147
10688 |HUNTER BROWN--VOID-- 9/30/2021 $0.00 |HUNTER BROWN-DTE-PER DIEM-OCT 4-7, 2021 PO 304960
10689 | NATHAN KEEN 9/30/2021 $159.98 |N KEEN-WTP/WWTP/EL BOOT/JACKET ALLOWMANCE-ANNUAL PO UT0007
10690 |PITNEY BOWES iNC. 9/30/2021 $486.21 [PITNEY BOWES-LEASE-MAILING MACHINE 7.30-10.29.21
10691 |POINT BROADBAND 9/30/2021 $71.00 |[POINT BROADBAND-DTF-INTERNET SVC PO 304957
10692 | PROFESSIONAL MAIL SERVICES, INC. 9/30/2021 $198.50 |PMSI-OCT '21 COMM UT BILLS-POSTAGE
10693 |SIDNEY ALLEN COMPTON 9/30/2021 $106.00 |ALLEN COMPTON-EL-2021 BOOT ALLOWANCE PO EL 700444
10694 |SPECTRUM BUSINESS 9/30/2021 $54.93 |SPECTRUM-WWTP-395 SCOTCH ROAD-TELEMETRY
10695 | TAZEWELL CO PUBLIC SERVICE AUTHORITY 9/30/2021 $39.74 |TCPSA-WWTP/LIFT STATION I
10696 | TREASURER, DIVISION OF CONSOLIDATED L 5/30/2021 $303.75 |TREAS, DCLS-WTP-COLIFORM SAMPLE KIT PO WTP0O7
10697 |CLERK, CIRCUIT COURT OF TAZEWELL COUN 9/30/2021 $8.00 |CLERK, CCTC-LIEN-OSBORNE, ROY-UTILITIES
10698 |HUNTER BROWN 9/30/2021 $427.00 |DTF-CONF OCT 3-8, 2021 PO 304960 |
10699 |BRAD RATLIFF 10/1/2021| $10,000.00 |BRAD RATLIFF-SETTLEMENT PROCEEDS-LEGAL
10700 | TREASURER TAZEWELL COUNTY 10/4/2021 $121.19 |TREAS, TAZ CO-AUG 2021 CONSUMER UT TAX
10701 {AFQUIS, KHALID 10/7/2021 $138.67 |Utility Refund for 404572.00 96
10702 |PRUITT, ESTATE OF ROGER LEE 10/7/2021 $19.92 |Utitity Refund for 808573.00 98
10703 [CLERK, CIRCUIT COURT OF TAZEWELL COU 10/7/2021 $1.00 |REL LIEN
$08,885.68
Total Checks: $98,885.68







ORDINANCE
0-2021-10-12

WHEREAS, the Town of Richlands desires to institute a Junior Firefighter Program; and

WHEREAS, any person sixteen (16) years of age or older is authorized to participate fully
in all activities of a volunteer fire company duly authorized to operate in the town/county after
they:

a) Become a member of the volunteer fire company.

b) Supplies to the chief fire officer of the volunteer fire company written
confirmation that such person is a resident of the Commonwealth of Virginia and
has parental approval and

c) Attains certification under National Fire Protection Association 1001, level one,
fire fighter standards as administered by the Department of Fire Programs; and

BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Richlands, Virginia, that the town of
Richlands so establishes the Richlands Junior Firefighter Program in accordance with Virginia
Code §40.1-79.1.

A motion was made by and seconded by that this
Ordinance be adopted and establish the Richlands Junior Firefighter Program on December 9,
2021, as pursuant to section 3.8 of the Richlands Town Charter, and such was passed bya -
___vote of the Town Council on this the 9th day of November 9, 2021.

Rodney D. Cury,

Mayor
Attest:
Town Clerk
Ayes:
Nays:
Absent:







